
City of San Juan Bautista 
The “City of History” 

 
                                          www.san-juan-bautista.ca.us 

       
                            REGULAR CITY COUNCIL 

TUESDAY, MARCH 21, 2023, 6:00 P.M. 
 

HYBRID MEETING 
City Hall, Council Chambers 

311 Second Street, San Juan Bautista, California 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
ZOOM WEBINAR PARTICIPATION 
The meeting can also be accessed by the public in the following methods: Through Zoom (https://zoom.us/join) per the 
instruction stated below, and on Facebook. 
 

JOIN ZOOM WEBINAR TO PARTICIPATE LIVE 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88373320235 

   
 To participate telephonically: 

call 1 (669) 900-6833 
Webinar ID: 883 7332 0235 

 
 
. 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
A. Pledge of Allegiance – Councilmember Morris-Lopez 
B. Roll Call  

 
2. CITY COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS  

This is an opportunity for the Council and staff to share the community calendar and announce upcoming 
dates of interest to the general public.  
 

3. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT  
Public comments generally are limited to three minutes per speaker on items that are not on the agenda and 
are under the City’s subject matter jurisdiction.  The Mayor may further limit the time for public comments 
depending on the agenda schedule.  

 
SUBMISSION OF PUBLIC COMMENTS PROCEDURES 
If you wish to make a general public comment and are attending in person, please fill out a speaker card. If 
you are attending via Zoom, join the Zoom Webinar, and use the "Raise Hand" or if joining by telephone, 
press *9 on your telephone keypad icon.   
 
Written comments may be submitted via mail to the Deputy City Clerk at City Hall (P.O. Box 1420, San Juan 
Bautista, CA 95045), or emailed to deputycityclerk@san-juan-bautista.ca.us no later than 4:00 p.m. on the 
day of the meeting.  Written comments will be read into the record provided that the reading does not exceed 
three (3) minutes.    

 

http://www.san-juan-bautista.ca.us/
https://zoom.us/join
mailto:deputycityclerk@san-juan-bautista.ca.us


Page | 2       City Council    March 21, 2023 
 

 

4. CONSENT 
All matters listed under the San Juan Bautista City Council Consent Agenda may be enacted by one motion 
unless a member of the City Council or the public requests discussion or a separate vote.  

A. Approve a RESOLUTION Terminating the Local Emergency due to COVID-19 Effective 
March 21, 2023. 

B. Approve a RESOLUTION Confirming the Continued Existence of Local Emergencies in 
the City of San Juan Bautista.  

C. Waive the Reading of Ordinances and Resolutions on the Agenda Beyond the Title.   
D. Approve the Affidavit of Posting Agenda.  
E.  Approve the Minutes of March 15, 2023.  
F. Approve a RESOLUTION Authorizing Closure of Streets for Certain Special Events in 

2023. 
G. Approve a RESOLUTION Enabling a Housing Choice Voucher and Project Based Voucher 

programs within and within a 10-mile radius outside City Limits. 

5. ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
A. Storm Update and Rancho Vista Stormwater Management Status 

6. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
A. Discuss “Reach” Codes 
B. Discuss Establishing a Recreation Program  
C. Discuss Changing the Zoning code Section 11-04-110 Regarding Large Retail, Formula Retail, 

and Formula Visitor Accommodations 
D. City Hall Office Hours 

7. ACTION ITEMS 
A. Removal of Parklets   
Recommendation:   Approve a RESOLUTION ordering the removal of certain parklets, and directing the 

City Manager to make funds available to defray the cost of removal within 60 days of 
the date of lifting of the State of Emergency due to COVID-19 by the State of 
California. 

B. Introduce an Ordinance to Amend Chapter 5.1 and Sections 5-1-100 and 5-1-105, Repealing 
Sections, 5-1-150, 5-1-160, and 5-1-170 of Article 1 of Chapter 5.1 of Title 5 “Public  Health, 
Safety and Welfare,” of the City of San Juan Bautista Municipal Code to Adopt By Reference 
in its Entirety the California Building Standards Code 2022 Edition of the California Fire Code 
and Appendices, Title 24, Part 9, of the California Code of Regulations, with Certain Exceptions, 
Modifications and Additions Required by Local Climatic, Geological or Topographical  
Conditions, and Approving Findings to Support Local Modifications, and Setting a Public 
Hearing on the Matter for Tuesday, April 18, 2023.  

C. Introduce an Ordinance to Amend Chapter 10, Article 1-110 “Code Adoption by Reference” 
of Chapter 10-1 “Buildings” of Title 10 “Buildings and Subdivisions” of the City of San Juan 
Bautista Municipal Code to Adopt by Reference Certain of the Parts of California Code of 
Regulations Title 24, the California Building Standards Code 2022 Edition including: Part 1 the 



Page | 3       City Council    March 21, 2023 
 

 

California Administrative Code,  Part  2 the California Building Code (Vols. 1 & 2), Part 2.5 the 
California Residential Code, Part 3 the California Electrical Code,  Part 4 the California 
Mechanical Code, Part 5 the California Plumbing  Code, Part 6 the California Energy Code, Part 
8 the California Historical Building Code, Part 10  the California Existing Building Code, Part 
11 the California Green Building Standards Code (CALGreen), and Part 12 the California 
Reference Standard Code; repealing section 10-1-115; and setting a public hearing for Tuesday, 
April 18, 2023. 

D. Council’s Selection of Member At Large to the Urban Growth Boundary/Sphere of 
Influence Subcommittee  
Recommendation:    Appoint a Member at Large to serve on the Urban Growth Boundary/Sphere of 

Influence Subcommittee. 

8. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS AND REPORTS 

A. Reports from City Council Representatives to Regional Organizations and Committees 

B. Treasurer’s Report and Monthly Financial Statements   
Receive Report from City Treasurer Michelle Sabathia.  

C. City Manager’s Report 
a. Fire Department Update 
b. Sheriff Department Update 

9. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
 
AGENDA MATERIAL / ADDENDUM  

Any addendums will be posted within 72 hours of regular meetings or 24 hours of special meetings, unless otherwise 
allowed under the Brown Act. City Council reports may be viewed at the City of San Juan Bautista City Hall at 311 
Second Street San Juan Bautista, and are posted on the City website www.san-juan-bautista.ca.us subject to Staff’s 
ability to post the documents before the meeting, or by emailing deputycityclerk@san-juan-bautista.ca.us or calling the 
Deputy Clerk (831) 623-4661 during normal business hours.  

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, and Govt. Code 54953(e)(1)(A), the City will make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting.  If you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please 
contact the Deputy City Clerk a minimum of 48 hours prior to the meeting at (831) 623-4661.  

 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION 

This agenda was posted on Friday, March 17, 2023, on the bulletin board at City Hall, 311 Second Street, the bulletin 
board at the City Library, 801 Second Street, the bulletin board at the entrance to the United States Post Office, 301 The 
Alameda, and the City’s website.  

Meetings are streamed live at  https://www.facebook.com/cityofsanjuanbautista/ and televised live on local Channel 17 
on the date of the regularly scheduled meeting.  

http://www.san-juan-bautista.ca.us/
mailto:deputycityclerk@san-juan-bautista.ca.us
https://www.facebook.com/cityofsanjuanbautista/


Item# 4.A 
City Council Meeting 

March 21, 2023 

Page | 1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-__ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA 
TERMINATING THE LOCAL EMERGENCY DUE TO COVID-19 EFFECTIVE 

MARCH 21, 2023 
 

 WHEREAS, Government Code §8630 and the San Juan Bautista Municipal Code §5-33-
040 authorize the Director of Emergency Services to proclaim a local emergency when 
conditions of disaster or extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the territorial 
limits of a city exist if the City Council is not in session and provides that the City Council shall 
ratify the proclamation within seven days thereafter; and 
 
 WHEREAS, under authority provided by Government Code §8625, on March 4, 2020, 
Governor Newsom issued a Proclamation of State of Emergency in response to the COVID-19 
pandemic; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with Government Code §8630 and San Juan Bautista 
Municipal Code §5-33-040, on March 17, 2020, the City Council of the City of San Juan 
Bautista, by Resolution 2020-10, upon the request of the Director of Emergency Services, 
proclaimed a state of local emergency caused by the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic to have 
existed in the City of San Juan Bautista since March 13, 2020; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council adopted subsequent resolutions confirming the continued 
existence of the local emergency and consistent with Government Code §8630, the City Council 
has periodically reviewed the need for continuing the local emergency and last reviewed the need 
for the local emergency on February 21, 2023; and   
 
 WHEREAS, on February 28, 2023, pursuant to Government Code §8629, Governor 
Newsom issued a Proclamation terminating the COVID-19 statewide state of emergency as of 
11:59 p.m. on that date; and 
  
 WHEREAS. Covid-19 vaccinations are now accessible to all; and 
 
 WHEREAS, within San Benito County 75.5 percent of residents have received a primary 
series vaccination against COVID-19; and     
 
 WHEREAS, Government Code §8630 provides that a local state of emergency shall 
expire at the earliest possible date that the conditions warrant; and 
 
 WHEREAS; based on current conditions and trend of COVID-19 data, the City Council 
desires to end the local emergency. 
    
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of San Juan 
Bautista that the City Council hereby proclaims and declares that the local emergency declared 
by Resolution 2020-10 due to the COVID-19 pandemic shall terminate as of 11:59 on March 21, 
2023. 



Item# 4.A 
City Council Meeting 

March 21, 2023 

Page | 2 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED at a duly noticed regular meeting of the City Council of the 

City of San Juan Bautista duly held on the 21st day of March 2023, by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
 
 

APPROVED:  
 
 

        ______________________ 
        Leslie Q. Jordan, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
____________________________ 
Elizabeth Soto, Deputy City Clerk 
 
 



Item# 4.B 
City Council Meeting 

March 21, 2023 
 

Page | 1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-__ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA 
CONFIRMING THE CONTINUED EXISTENCE OF LOCAL EMERGENCIES IN THE 

CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA 
 

 WHEREAS, the California Emergency Services Act (Cal. Gov’t. Code §§8550-8668) 
requires the governing body of a city to review the need for continuing a local emergency that 
has previously been declared; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on April 19, 2022, by Resolution No. 2022-27, the San Juan Bautista City 
Council declared the City of San Juan Bautista to be in a state of drought emergency; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on January 12, 2023, the City Manager acting as the Director of Emergency 
Services (Municipal Code 5-33-030) proclaimed a state of emergency in the City of San Juan 
Bautista to facilitate the City’s response to excessive winter storms, which proclamation was 
subsequently ratified by the City Council by Resolution No. 2023-01 on January 17, 2023; and   
  
 WHEREAS, on March 10, 2023, the City Manager acting as the Director of Emergency 
Services (Municipal Code 5-33-030) proclaimed a second state of emergency in the City of San 
Juan Bautista due to excessive winter storms and flooding, which proclamation was subsequently 
ratified by the City Council by Resolution No. 2023-17 on March 15, 2023; and 
 
 WHEREAS, state and local public health and safety emergencies resulting from the 
drought and from the excessive winter storm activities continue pose a threat to the health and 
safety of residents in the City of San Juan Bautista. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of San Juan 
Bautista, that: 
 
 1. The City Council hereby finds and declares that the local emergencies described 
in this Resolution continue to exist and shall be deemed to continue to exist until their 
termination is proclaimed by the City Council of the City of San Juan Bautista, California.      
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED at a duly noticed regular meeting of the City Council of the 
City of San Juan Bautista duly held on the 21st day of March 2023, by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
  
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
 



Item# 4.B 
City Council Meeting 

March 21, 2023 
 

Page | 2 
 

APPROVED:  
 
 
        ______________________ 
        Leslie Q. Jordan, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
____________________________ 
Elizabeth Soto, Deputy City Clerk 
 
 



Item # 4C 
City Council Meeting 

March 21, 2023 

 
 

WAIVER OF READING OF ORDINANCES 
 

  
State law requires that an ordinance be read in its entirety prior to adoption unless the City 
Council waives reading beyond the title.  Reading an entire ordinance at the meeting is extremely 
time-consuming; reading of the title alone usually gives the audience sufficient understanding of 
what the Council is considering. 
 
To ensure that this waiver is consistently approved by the Council, Council should make the 
waiver at each meeting, thus, you should do it at this point on the Consent Agenda. The Council 
then does not have to worry about making this motion when each ordinance comes up on the 
agenda.   
 
 
GC § 36934 



Item: #4.D 
City Council Meeting 

March 21, 2023 

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 

I, Elizabeth Soto, Do Now Declare, Under the Penalties of Perjury That I Am the Deputy 
City Clerk / Administrative Services Manager in the City of San Juan Bautista and That I 
Posted Three (3) True Copies of the attached City Council Agenda. I Further Declare That 
I Posted Said Agenda on the 17th day of March 2023, and in the Following Locations in 
said City of San Juan Bautista, County of San Benito, California. 

1. On The Bulletin Board at City Hall, 311 Second Street.
2. On The Bulletin Board at The City Library, 801 Second Street.
3. On The Bulletin Board at The Entrance to The United States Post Office, 301

The Alameda

Signed at San Juan Bautista, County of San Benito, California, on the 17th day of March 
2023. 

____________________________________________ 
Elizabeth Soto 
Deputy City Clerk / Administrative Services Manager 



Item #4.E 
City Council Meeting 

March 21, 2023 

Page | 1 City Council Meeting Minutes (March 15, 2023) 

SAN JUAN BAUTISTA CITY COUNCIL 
UNOFFICIAL SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
MARCH 15, 2023 

1. CALL TO ORDER
Mayor Jordan called the meeting to order at 12:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

ROLL CALL  Present:  
Mayor Pro Tem John Freeman 
Councilmember Scott Freels 
Councilmember Jackie Morris-Lopez 
Mayor Leslie Q. Jordan  

Absent:  
Councilmember EJ Sabathia 

Staff Present:  
Don Reynolds, City Manager 
Robert Rathie, City Attorney 
Elizabeth Soto, Deputy City Clerk 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT
Received public comment.

3. ACTION ITEMS

A. City Manager Declaring a State of Emergency and Ratifying the Proclamation of the
Existence of a Local Emergency

City Manager Don Reynolds reported that on January 12, 2023, the City Manager acting as the 
Director of Emergency Services (Municipal Code 5-33-030) proclaimed a state of emergency in 
San Juan Bautista, to facilitate the City’s response to the local state of emergency caused by the 
excessive winter storms. The declaration will support the City’s on-going response to the winter 
storms and flooding.   

City Attorney Robert Rathie clarified that a press release from the Governor’s office published  
on March 12, 2023 added the additional counties of Calaveras, Del Norte, Glenn, Kings, San 
Benito and San Joaquin to the proclaimed “State of Emergency.” 



Item #4.E 
City Council Meeting 

March 21, 2023 

Page | 2 City Council Meeting Minutes  (March 15, 2023) 
 

Mr. Rathie pointed out that the Resolution, third recital, should say March 10, 2023; and the fifth 
recital, should read, “and also on March 12, 2023, California Governor Newsom to proclaim a 
state of emergency….” 
 
Received public comment from the following members of the public:  
Mirgana Tomas 
Mary Edge  
 
The City Council thanked City Manager, Public Works, city contractors, and community 
members for their efforts during this local state of emergency. 
 
MOTION:  
Upon motion by Freels, second by Mayor Pro Tem Freeman, RESOLUTION 2023-17 ratifying 
the Proclamation issued by the City Manager on March 10, 2023, declaring a State of Emergency 
for the City of San Juan Bautista as amended was approved.  AYES: Councilmembers: Freeman, 
Freels, Morris-Lopez, and Mayor Jordan. NOES: None; ABSTAIN: None; ABSENT: 
Councilmember Sabathia 
 
 
B. APPROVE THE AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING AGENDA 
 
MOTION: 
Upon motion by Mayor Pro Tem Freeman, second by Councilmember Morris-Lopez, the 
Affidavit of Posting Agenda was approved.   AYES: Councilmembers: Freeman, Freels, Morris-
Lopez, and Mayor Jordan. NOES: None; ABSTAIN: None; ABSENT: Councilmember Sabathia 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business, Mayor Jordan adjourned the meeting at 12:19 p.m.  
 
 
 
APPROVED:  
 
 
____________________________ 
Leslie Q. Jordan, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
____________________________ 
Elizabeth Soto, Deputy City Clerk 



Item #4.F 
City Council Meeting 

March 21. 2023 

Page | 1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-XX 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA 
AUTHORIZING CLOSURE OF STREETS FOR CERTAIN SPECIAL EVENTS IN 2023  

 
WHEREAS, The City has received the following applications for Special Events in 2023 

and authorization for Street Closure are a prerequisite for issuance of such permits for the 
following events:  
 

Early Days in San Juan Bautista 
June 17, 2023 AND June 18, 2023 from 11 AM – 4 PM ,  

Second Street Between Washington Street and Mariposa Street  
 

Los Paladrinos 12th Annual Car Show 
June 24, 2023 6AM to 5PM 

Third Street From Franklin to Muckelemi Streets 
Washington Street, Mariposa Street, Polk Street Between Second and Fourth Streets 

 
Mandala Street Painting (Revised) 

April 23, 2023 7AM – 6 PM 
Polk Street Between Third and Fourth Streets 

  
BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council does hereby authorize the referenced entities 

to close streets on the dates and times referenced herein subject to the following requirements: 
 

1. All conditions and requirements of agencies, including the Fire Marshall, San Benito 
County Sheriff, Building Official, Public Works Director, San Benito County Health 
Dept., San Benito County Integrated Waste Management, Community Development 
Director shall be met prior to, during, and after the event in the manner deemed necessary 
by the City Manager. 
 

2. Prior to each event, Sponsors shall submit an agreement to reimburse the City in 
accordance with an invoice duly issued by the City to cover City expenses as deemed 
necessary by the City Manager to support administrative, material and City staff time 
associated with the Street Closure.   

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 21st day of March 2023 by the following vote: 

 
AYES:        
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:    
 
ABSTAIN:                                                                   
 



Item #4.F 
City Council Meeting 

March 21. 2023 

Page | 2 
 

APPROVED:  
 

 
_____________________ 
Leslie Q. Jordan, Mayor                        

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Elizabeth Soto, Deputy City Clerk 

 
 



Item# 4.G 
City Council Meeting 

March 21, 2023  

Page | 1  

CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA  
CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 

  

 
DATE:  MARCH 21, 2023 
 
DEPARTMENT:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
 
FROM:  BRIAN FOUCHT, DIRECTOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 
TITLE:  RESOLUTION ENABLING A HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER AND 

PROJECT BASED VOUCHER PROGRAMS WITHIN AND WITHIN 
A 10 MILE RADIUS OUTSIDE CITY LIMITS.   

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION(S): 
Adopt a resolution authorizing the County of Santa Cruz Housing Authority to serve and administer 
the Housing Choice Voucher and Project Based Voucher Programs within City Limits and within 
a 10-mile radius of the City of San Juan Bautista.  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
The Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz has served and administered multiple housing 
resources, such as the Housing Choice Voucher and Project Based Voucher Programs for the cities 
of Hollister and San Juan Bautista since 1977.  
  
The Housing Authority currently administers these programs within the cities in San Benito 
County. This agreement designates the Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz as the agent 
Housing Authority for San Juan Bautista in the application, operation, and administration of HUD's 
federally subsidized housing programs. With the agreement of all parties (parallel resolutions to be 
considered by the City of Hollister and San Benito County) the Housing Authority of the County of 
Santa Cruz will continue to extend the administration of referenced HUD federally funded rental 
assistance programs within a 10-mile radius outside of the San Juan Bautista city limits. Re-
entering into this agreement will not increase the number of available vouchers; yet, will allow 
renters owners to have more rental options throughout the San Benito County.  
  
The Housing Authority of Santa Cruz also owns and manages USDA Farmworker Housing, 
provides foreclosure education, and administers homeownership programs. With the Housing 
Authority of Santa Cruz's vast knowledge and experience of housing programs the City of San Juan 
Bautista can begin to establish more programs and achieve more equitable housing.  
  
The last agreement between the County of San Benito and the Housing Authority of Santa Cruz 
was entered into in 2020. The Housing Authority of Santa Cruz has requested the establishment of 
a new agreement between the County of San Benito and the cities of Hollister and San Juan 
Bautista. 
 
Attached:  
DRAFT City Council Resolution  



Item# 4.G 
City Council Meeting 

March 21, 2023 

Page | 1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023 – XX 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA 
AUTHORIZING THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 
TO EXTEND SERVICE AND ADMINISTER HOUSING PROGRAMS WITHIN A 10-

MILE RADIUS OUTSIDE THE CITY LIMITS OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA 
 

WHEREAS, The Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz has served and 
administered multiple housing resources, such as the Housing Choice Voucher and Project Based 
Voucher Programs for the Cities of San Juan Bautista and Hollister since 1977 as the Cities' 
agent for the application, operation, and administration of HUD's federally subsidized housing 
programs; and 
 

WHEREAS, with the agreement of San Benito County and the Cities of Hollister and 
San Juan Bautista, the Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz will extend the 
administration of HUD federally funded rental assistance programs within a 10-mile radius 
outside of the San Juan Bautista City Limits; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of San Juan Bautista supports extending services of the Housing 
Authority of Santa Cruz County extending rental assistance services for rental units located in 
the City of San Juan Bautista and also an unincorporated portion of the County of San Benito 
within a 10-mile radius outside the San Juan Bautista; and 
 

WHEREAS, though extending the program into the unincorporated area will not 
increase the number of available vouchers, it will allow residents to have more residential 
options in the unincorporated areas of San Benito County. 
   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of San Juan 
Bautista that the Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz may extend housing assistance 
services on behalf of the City of San Juan Bautista for units located within San Juan Bautista and 
within in a portion of the unincorporated County of San Benito within a 10-mile radius outside 
the San Juan Bautista City Limits. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the San Juan Bautista City Council 
on the 21st  day of March 2023, by the following vote: 
  
AYES: 
 
NOES:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
 
 



Item# 4.G 
City Council Meeting 

March 21, 2023 

Page | 2 
 

APPROVED:  
 

 
_________________________ 
Leslie Q. Jordan, Mayor                        

 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Elizabeth Soto, Deputy City Clerk 
 
 



Item # 6A 
City Council Meeting 

March 21, 2023 

Page | 1 
 

CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA 
CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 
 

 
 
DATE: MARCH 21, 2023 
 
DEPARTMENT: CITY MANAGER 
 
FROM: DON REYNOLDS, CITY MANAGER 
 
BY:   
 
TITLE:  DISCUSS “REACH” BUILDING CODES  
 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION(S):  
 
Staff’s intention is to introduce “Reach” Building Codes to the City and City Council for 
discussion to determine if or how these Building Codes might be considered for San Juan Bautista.  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  
 
Building Codes are updated every two years. On this same agenda in a separate report to the City 
Council, the California Building Code and update process are described and provided as 
background information for this matter. 
 
At the February 21, 2023 City Council meeting, staff presented the 2022 California Building Codes 
for adoption without amending them.  They include the 6-distinct sections that update the basic 
building codes, incorporate International code revisions, and the specific California Green 
Building Codes intended to reduce greenhouse gasses.  Decisions were postponed until this March 
21, 2023 Agenda.   
 
While contemplating the update of the Building Codes, a discussion occurred regarding possibly 
amending the proposed Codes. The changes considered are known as “Reach Codes” because they 
“reach” beyond the standard template of Title 24 of the Uniform Building Codes. 
 
Originally, “Reach” Codes were intended to encourage energy conservation and efficiency beyond 
the State Title 24 Building Codes.  Now several State laws have been passed to mandate that these 
steps be taken, to include solar panels for new construction (for example) and other similar 
improvements.  In the past three years, Reach Codes have been targeting the “electrification” of 
buildings, a trend that moves buildings away from natural gas.  Burning natural gas is a significant 
source of green-house gasses, and for some, the CO2 produced can cause respiratory health issues. 



Item # 6A 
City Council Meeting 

March 21, 2023 

Page | 2 
 

 
At the February 21, 2023 Council meeting the City (a “Member Agency”) also received an update 
from Central Coast Community Energy (3CE).  90% of 3CE’s budget is spent on buying power, 
with a focus on sustainable power, and a goal to be free from fossil fueled power ahead of the 
State’s 2050 goal.  Customers that were reliant upon PGE for their power now have a choice, and 
90.98% of San Juan Bautista residents have chosen to buy power from 3CE instead of PG&E 
(PG&E uses its transmission lines to deliver 3CE energy.  The bills are from PG&E but indicate 
that the power comes from 3CE).   
 
The City Council’s 3CE update included a financial status, as well as the status of their special 
programs.  10% of their annual budget pays for administration and special programs that provide 
a variety of incentives for its subscribers: 
 

1. Electrifying your home (including multifamily projects); 
2. Electrifying your ride (Phase 1 and 2); 
3. Ag Electrification; and 
4. Electric Bus program. 

 
Summaries of these programs are provided in the first Attachment to this report.  It includes a 
whole new division added in October 2022, “the journey towards Reach Codes.” It is intended to 
help member agencies adopt codes to “electrify” new buildings, and encourage the use of electric 
vehicles.  It is focused primarily on new construction and volunteer incentivized appliance 
upgrades (rebates, et al). More details can be found at this link, are attached, and summarized 
below https://centralcoastreachcodes.org/ 
 
“CCCE’s Reach Code Program for Member Agencies  

Every three years, California’s Building Energy Efficiency Standards (Title 24) are updated by 
the California Energy Commission (CEC) to reduce wasteful energy consumption in newly 
constructed and existing buildings. At this juncture, cities and counties have the option to go 
beyond what is required by the CEC, and instead adopt Reach Codes, building codes designed to 
reduce greenhouse gas emissions more aggressively.  

Adopting Reach Codes can be a complex and lengthy process for jurisdictions, involving studies, 
community engagement, and ordinance revisions. CCCE’s past Reach Code Program provided 
post-codification financial incentives to Member Agencies. This year’s program provides help 
to City and County staff in conducting the process required to develop, adopt, and implement 
Reach Codes, which is often a difficult and resource intensive process.  

Reach codes can take many forms including prohibiting new gas line hookups in new 
construction, requiring heating system electrification for major renovations, and requiring 
electric vehicle charging readiness, to name a few. Of the 33 Cities and Counties that make up 
CCCE, two have adopted or initiated the process to adopt reach codes.  

https://centralcoastreachcodes.org/


Item # 6A 
City Council Meeting 

March 21, 2023 

Page | 3 
 

“The path to zero-emission buildings and transportation is fraught with challenges,” said Jon 
Griesser, Director of Energy Programs for Central Coast Community Energy. “Our local 
communities are committed to improving air quality, safety, and protecting the environment 
for the families, residents, and businesses of the Central Coast. But they’ve also let us know they 
need a helping hand with some of the heavier-lift items. We’re excited to be able to offer this 
opportunity for partnership that promises immediate and meaningful benefits.”  

DISCUSSION: 
 
3CE has been invited by the City Manager to make a brief presentation to the City Council about 
the “path to Reach Codes.”  They offer this service to their members, using grant funds and 
technical consultant to draft policies, and help cities update and modify their Title 24 Building 
Codes.  This presentation and report have also been shared with the City Attorney and Building 
Official. 
 
There are many different paths to choose from.  The most popular seem to be those that require all 
new buildings to include Reach Code requirements and compliance, and incentivize existing 
property owners to make changes away from natural gas appliances to electric. 
 
Once a path is decided upon, the City Attorney and Building Official will draft a new Ordinance 
that amends the current Title 24 Building Codes.  It would be subject to two public meetings and 
public comment, and a 30-day notice period before becoming effective. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

There is no fiscal impact anticipated by considering a change to the building codes. 

ATTACHMENTS:    

Summary of 3CE programs 

Reach Code Summary 

 



Item: # 6.A
City Council Meeting
March 21, 2023





































Is your city or county interested in reducing greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions and 
supporting safe, clean, and comfortable buildings?

Reach Code 
Program

WHAT ARE REACH CODES?

• Reach codes are building codes related 
to energy that go beyond the minimum 
state requirements and are adopted by 
local cities and counties.

• Today, reach codes commonly address 
building electrification, energy efficiency, 
and electric vehicle charging.

• Reach codes can take several forms 
including building, municipal and zoning 
code amendments.

CENTRAL COAST COMMUNITY 
ENERGY (3CE) IS HERE TO HELP

3CE is committed to reduce GHG emissions 
within its service area by supporting building 
and transportation electrification reach 
codes.

If your city or county is interested, please visit 
centralcoastreachcodes.org to view model 
codes, resources and to request support.

3CE’S PROGRAM PROVIDES:

Recommended model code 
language and resources

Adoption assistance

Implementation assistance

3CE offers no-cost technical assistance to Member Agencies pursuing reach codes



City of San Juan Bautista 
Reach Code Presentation

Council Study Session
March 21, 2023



CLEAN ENERGY. LOCAL CONTROL.



• Local enhancements to state code
• Title 24 amendments – Part 11 or Part 6 
• Municipal amendments – i.e. Health and 

Safety Code amendment
• San Luis Obispo
• Santa Cruz

• Can be adopted at any time
• Focus on building electrification and 

electric vehicle charging infrastructure

What are Reach Codes?

Tonight's discussion is about new construction only



Reach Code Pathways
Amendment 

Type
Governing Agency Advantage Disadvantages Examples

Part 11 Building Standards 
Commission (BSC)

CEC approval not 
required

Tied to the 3-year 
code cycle

Pacifica

Part 6 California Energy 
Commission (CEC)

Can include 
energy efficiency 
measures

CEC approval 
required

Ojai

Municipal Code Building Standards 
Commission (BSC)

Not tied to the 3-
year code cycle

Semi-permanent 
approach favors 
long-term 
measures

San Luis Obispo
Santa Cruz

Zoning Code 
(EV only)

Building Standards 
Commission (BSC)

San Luis Obispo



• Senate Bill 100 and Assembly Bill 3232
• Reduce green house gas emissions

• 18% of emissions from commercial and residential 
Buildings

• 12% of emissions from road transportation1

• Achieve your climate action goals

• Improved indoor and outdoor air quality
• Lower cost buildings
• Job creation

• ~64,000 new jobs created per year2

Why All-Electric Reach Codes?

Sources: (1) Shayle Kann, Climate Tech VC
(2) UCLA 2019, UMass 2021

https://climatetechvc.substack.com/p/-five-frontier-challenges-to-deep
https://innovation.luskin.ucla.edu/wp-content/uploads/2019/11/California_Building_Decarbonization.pdf
https://peri.umass.edu/publication/item/1466-a-program-for-economic-recovery-and-clean-energy-transition-in-california


Reach Code Support

Outreach and Stakeholder Engagement

Stakeholder Engagement and Feedback
Stakeholder meeting facilitation support
Solicit feedback from building industry, 

community and city staff
Drive tool enhancement

Website Development

Technical Assistance

Tool Development 
Model codes, staff report templates, info

Adoption Support
Attend city council meetings
Answer technical questions

Implementation Support
Building plan checklist 
Training for Member Agency staff



Building Electrification – New Construction

• Also restricts extension of any existing gas infrastructure
All-electric construction required

• If either of the below are replaced over 3 years for 
purposes other than repair or reinforcement
• 50% of above-sill framing, or
• 50% of foundation

New construction definition

• No prescriptive pathway according to CA Energy Code
• Commercial kitchen appliances
• Electric-readiness required

• Pre-wiring 
• Physical space

Optional exceptions

Find our codes on:
CentralCoastReachCodes.Org

https://centralcoastreachcodes.org/#recommended-codes


EV Code Terminology
Speed Readiness Number

Level 1
3-4 miles per 
charging hour

Level 2
10-20 miles per 
charging hour

Level 3
150+ miles per charging hour

EV Capable

EV Charging Station

EV Ready

Percent of 
Parking Spaces



EV Infrastructure – New Construction

• 2 EV spaces total:
• 1 Level 2 EV Ready
• 1 Level 1 EV Ready

Single Family

• High-Power Option: 15% L2 EVCS + 85% L2 EV Ready (low-power)
• Low-Power Option: 40% L2 EVCS + 60% L1 EV Ready

Multifamily – 100% Access

• Offices: 20% L2 EVCS + 30% L2 EV Capable
• Other commercial: 10% L2 EVCS + 10% L2 EV Capable

Commercial

Find our codes on:
CentralCoastReachCodes.Org

https://centralcoastreachcodes.org/#recommended-codes


All-Electric Home Cost Effectiveness

Mixed-Fuel Home All-Electric Standard: 
minimal efficiency, 

minimal solar

All-Electric Efficient:  
expanded efficiency, 

optimal Solar

Construction Cost:
(compared to mixed-fuel)

Bill Impact:
(compared to mixed-fuel)

- $17/month 
increase

$50/month 
savings

- $6,000 
savings

CO2 Impact:

$1,000 
savings

*This analysis was performed for climate zone 5



Available Incentives 
• New Construction 

• New Construction Electrification Program 
• Building Initiative for Low-Emissions Development Program (BUILD) for affordable housing developments 
• California Electric Homes Program (CEHP) for market rate developments 

• Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure 
• Electrify your Ride 

• For single-family, receive up to $4,000 
• For multifamily, receive up to $10,000 
• For commercial, receive up to $5,000

• Existing Buildings – Electrify your Home

3CE is providing $$ millions in electrification incentives

• Building Electrification  =  $5MM

• Transportation Electrification  =  $17MM

https://3cenergy.org/rebates/new-construction-electrification-program-2/
https://www.energy.ca.gov/programs-and-topics/programs/building-initiative-low-emissions-development-program
https://www.energy.ca.gov/programs-and-topics/programs/california-electric-homes-program-calehp
https://3cenergy.org/rebates/electrify-your-ride-residential/
https://3cenergy.org/rebates/electrify-your-ride-commercial-2/
https://3cenergy.org/rebates/electrify-your-ride-commercial-2/
https://3cenergy.org/rebates/electrify-your-home/


Is Electrification Resilient?
Heat Pump 

Water Heating
Heat Pump 

Space Heating
Induction 
Cooking

Electric 
Clothes Drying

Gas furnaces require 
electric fans, but 

fireplaces still work.

Gas water heaters 
require electronic 
ignition or pumps

Gas dryers use 
electric motors to  

run tumbler

Gas stoves will work 
without electricity, 

but it’s unsafe

https://www.npr.org/2021/10/07/1015460605/gas-stove-emissions-climate-change-health-effects


Thank you!

Any Questions?
Mayra Vega: mvega@trccompanies.com

Kevin Miller: kmiller@3ce.org

Please contact us to request further information or support!

mailto:mvega@trccompanies.com
mailto:kmiller@3ce.org
https://centralcoastreachcodes.org/#contact-us


Item 6.B 
City Council 

March 21, 2023 

 
1 

 

  CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA 
CITY COUNCIL REPORT 

 
 

AGENDA TITLE:  DISCUSS ESTABLISHING A RECREATION PROGRAM 
 
MEETING DATE: March 21, 2023 
 
DEPARTMENT HEAD: Don Reynolds, City Manager 
 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION(S):  
 
It is recommended that the City Council receive reports from City Manager Reynolds, and Kim 
Calame, the Chair of the Community Relations and Resources Subcommittee of the Economic 
Development Citizen’s Advisory Committee, and discuss the establishment of a City recreation 
program for all ages, but especially seniors and children below the age of 18. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  
 
On June 14, 2022, the City approved resolution 2022-49, and adopted its new Operating and 
Capital Improvement Budgets for Fiscal Year 2022/23.  With the help of federal American Rescue 
Plan (“ARP”) funds, the City subsequently approved Joint Use Agreement (as amended) with the 
School District to open its playgrounds to the general public when school was not in session.  It 
also budgeted funds to resolve the acoustic issues in the Community Hall. These two projects are 
intended to address the unmet needs of the most vulnerable population in the City hardest impacted 
by the pandemic; seniors and young children. 
 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 
 
On November 15, 2022, the Council approved Resolution 2022-84 amending the Joint Use 
Agreement with the School District.  The City spent approximately $85,000 on fencing at the San 
Juan School, to allow for the use of the facility without, access to the buildings.  The facilities were 
open in time for the Thanksgiving holiday.  In the fall of 2022, the City retained an acoustic expert 
to evaluate the 2018 Community Hall acoustics study.  After several months of refining the 
specifications, the City is ready to solicit bids for the acoustic work   After completion, the facility 
will be better suited to resume hosting senior lunches, after school and summer recreation 
programs. 
 
 
 
 



Item # 6.B 
City Council Meeting 

March 21, 2023 

 
Page | 2 

 

 
 
PERSONNEL CHANGES 
 
Several changes to City personnel occurred with the adoption of the City’s Fiscal Year 2022/23 
Budget. Below is a summary from the published “Cleargov” Budget Narrative. (https://city-san-
juan-bautista-ca-budget-book.cleargov.com/5627/introduction/transmittal-letter ) 
 

 
Among the many changes, it confirmed these policies, including keeping “Code Enforcement” and 
the Library Lead Tech at 30-hours per week without regard to the status of the COVID-19 state of 
emergency.  Staff working as “Code Enforcement” is clearly working out-of-class, and providing 
the City much more than just code enforcement.  Extra duties include the coordination of the 
private security services, animal regulation, parking enforcement, commercial truck traffic 
enforcement, and some investigation work of petty crimes.  These skills are known as “quality of 
life” public safety services.   The Library Lead Tech is working with part-time staff limited to 20-
hours per week, and three positions work to keep the library open 6 days a week.  This is currently 
a hard role to sustain due to a vacancy that has taken several months to fill.  This year the City 
hopes to re-establish its summer programs now that COVID 19 has passed.  Without keeping the 
Lead Library Tech hours at 30-per week, we may have to reduce services. 
 
The only matter not accomplished on this list was contingent upon the status of the mid-year budget 
at which time if funding was available, the City would look into hiring a part-time “Community 
Services Coordinator.”  When the Budget was adopted last June, the position of “Community 
Services Coordinator” was being used to describe the role of establishing recreation programs, 
coordinating volunteers, facility rentals and special events. 

https://city-san-juan-bautista-ca-budget-book.cleargov.com/5627/introduction/transmittal-letter
https://city-san-juan-bautista-ca-budget-book.cleargov.com/5627/introduction/transmittal-letter


Item # 6.B 
City Council Meeting 

March 21, 2023 

 
Page | 3 

 

 
Staff confirmed at its January 24, 2023 Council meeting, that the mid-year budge review does have 
adequate funding for this part-time position that serves seniors, and youth programs at City parks 
and the Community Hall, as well as at the school playground and basketball courts. If successful, 
the position may be expanded to a full-time position that includes volunteers, facility rentals, and 
coordinating special events.  A proposed Job Description for a “Recreation Assistant” is attached 
for the Council’s consideration. 
 
COMMUNITY ENAGEMENT 
 
During the past year, the Economic Development Citizens Advisory Committee has been 
conducting community engagement and research through its “Community Relations and 
Resources Subcommittee.”  It last met January 19th, 2023, and the City Council received feedback 
from its work focused on recreation.  The second attachment is the Subcommittee’s annual report.  
Chair of this Committee Kim Calame, will be at the City Council meeting to present the findings 
to the City Council. Page 12-of this 28-page report discusses “next steps.”  There are13-different 
recommendations listed here that start with helping programs that already exist.  These include 
youth sports, pickleball, chess, and senior activities.  Hiring a part-time position this fiscal year 
will help the community evaluate the potential and challenges of developing and staffing a more 
robust and sustainable recreation program.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
As the City considers venturing into recreation program services, different service and funding 
models need to be considered to avoid starting and then ending popular programs. Local 
government has the tools needed to develop recreation facilities, but staffing them and building a 
sustainable recreation program can be more challenging.  Rarely do recreation program fees off-
set the costs, but they help.  Over the years as local government budgets ebb and flow with the 
economic tide, it seems that recreation programs are the most vulnerable to budgets cuts. 
 
Occasionally a regional recreation solution can be created relying on a property tax assessment 
voted on and approved by ballot measure as a direct funding source.  The Conejo Recreation and 
Park District is an example, and can be found at this link: https://www.crpd.org/  (City Manager’s 
home town!)  But if this solution cannot be agreed upon, then it comes down to the local 
government’s general fund that subsidizes programs to make them affordable.  The Subcommittee 
has provided a creative solution in the third attachment called a “Parks Charter Fund.”  This 
example is more flexible than a property tax because it is renewed and modified by the local 
government without the need to return to the ballot.  It has a sunset clause whereby the local 
government can elect to not renew it.  It is a general guarantee to the community that recreation 
will be funded every year by a percentage of the revenues received. 
 
 
 

https://www.crpd.org/


Item # 6.B 
City Council Meeting 

March 21, 2023 

 
Page | 4 

 

Staff and the Subcommittee agree that by starting with a simple small recreation program is the 
best way to initiate this endeavor.  It is popular and the citizens take advantage of it, then it has the 
potential to grow.  In the meantime, the proposed part-time Recreation Assistant position can 
support the current efforts ongoing in the City now. 
 
Fitting a new Recreation Assistant into the organization may also be a challenge.  The Lead Library 
Technician currently reports to the City Manager. The job description does include some program 
funding, but on a very-limited scale.  Initially, the Recreation Assistant would report at least 
initially to the City Manager, and work from the Library. 
 
If successful, the recreation and library services for the City could be grown into a Library and 
Community Services Department.  It would have its own Commission, and perhaps a new youth 
commission and/or senior citizen commission.  Senior programs could evolve into a focused 
recreation leader position just for senior services, and the same for sports and youth services.  The 
Luck Park Master Plan does consider offices and a community center for these types of services. 
This may be a 5–10-year plan, assuming the funding sources are also approved (considered) to 
support this growth.  But if the City does not grow, it does not make sense to grow a recreation 
program of this size or magnitude.  
 
Staff suggests allowing the job description to come back to the City Council for approval in April, 
and that recruitment start before May 1st.  The position will report to the City Manager, but work 
together with the Library Lead Technician to start a formal recreation program.   
 
ATTACHMENTS:    

1. Part-Time Recreation Assistant Job Description 
2. EDCAC Community Relations and Resources Subcommittee Annual Report 
3. “Parks Charter” funding system for consideration 





































































Item# 6.C 
City Council Meeting 

March 21, 2023 

 
 

CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA 
CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 

 
 
 
DATE:   MARCH 21, 2023  
 
DEPARTMENT:  CITY MANAGER  
 
FROM:  DON REYNOLDS, CITY MANAGER  
 
BY:   DON REYNOLDS  
 
TITLE:  DISCUS CHANGING THE ZONING CODE SECTION 11-04-110 

REGARDING LARGE RETAIL, FORMULA RETAIL, AND 
FORMULA VISITOR ACCOMMODATIONS  

 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  
 
Receive a report from City Manager Don Reynolds, and discuss modifying the Zoning Code 11-
40-110 to allow formula hotel, pharmaceutical, and bank establishments. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
There is no recommended action from staff.   
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  
 
Zoning Code 11-04-110 is attached to this report along with an article on “Formula Business 
Restrictions” from the not-for-profit “Institute for Self-Reliance” as background for a discussion 
requested at the February 21, 2023 Council meeting regarding the City’s Formula Retail Business 
codes.  The article provides links to more than twenty cities around the country (including San 
Juan Bautista) that have restricted formula and large-scale retail in their cities, or a part of their 
cities.  Some members of the City Council asked that the City’s policies be reviewed, to explore 
possible exceptions to this rule to encourage hotels, banks, and pharmacies to locate here.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
On February 20, 2007, the City adopted Ordinance 2007-03, 2007-04, and then on March 20, 2007 
it adopted Ordinance 2007-12 and established restrictions on formula retail stores, restaurants,  and 
large retail establishments.   “Formula Businesses” are defined in the attached article as “stores 
and restaurants that have standardized services, décor, methods or operation, and other features 
that make them virtually identical to businesses elsewhere.”  The article also reviews legal issues 
that resulted from two court challenges to these laws between 2000, and 2008.  The intent of the 
policy is to preserve local independent retail.  It prevents a chain store coffee shop (ice cream, or 



 

2 | P a g e  
 

other service that already exists) from establishing in the City because the City already has a coffee 
shop. 
On March 18, 2014, threatened by an $80,000 law suit, the City adopted Ordinance 2014-01 
rescinding the 2007 zoning code 11-04-110.  But in September 16, 2004, it adopted Ordinance 
2014-04, and reestablished 11-04-110.  Subsequently approved was a 24-hour retail store for the 
new gas station, because it was a unique business to the City, and the first of its kind.  Amendments 
were adopted in 2015, 2017 and most recently in 2021, but the intent of the Ordinance has 
remained as approved September 2014. Large scale retail businesses exceeding 5,000 square feet 
require a conditional use permit. 
 
A review of the many articles that contributed to the attached article from the Institute of Self-
Reliance, can be summarized in these three principals: 
 

 
 
The concerns expressed at the City Council meeting February 21st, 2023, are regarding certain 
retail and hotel services that the City does not have, or perhaps needs more of.  Three business 
types were to be discussed as possible “exceptions” to this zoning code, and they include: hotels, 
pharmacies, and banks.  A proposed bank or pharmacy would be unique, (staff is not aware of any 
current proposal for either of these two types of establishments), and can be considered under the 
current policy.  But a new hotel would be the third in addition to the two establishments already 
located in town.  The Ordinance could be altered, or perhaps a moratorium could be established 
for a certain period of time to encourage businesses of certain types to be considered.  There are 
plenty of other types of services lacking in the City that may include a laundry matt, dry-cleaner, 
bike shop, and others. 
 
Does the City want to change the existing ordinance?  How and for what purposes?  If so, 
permanently or for a limited period?  What is the best way to change the Ordinance to avoid the 
threat of legal challenges like the one that occurred in 2014? 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
No fiscal impact from a matter of discussion by the City Council, to the City of San Juan 
Bautista.  
 



Item# 6.C 
City Council Meeting 

March 21, 2023 

 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Zoning Code 11-04-110 



Item: # 6.C
City Council Meeting
March 21, 2023



















    Item #7.A    
              City Council Meeting 

         March 21, 2023 

1 

 

 

 

CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA  
CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 

  

 
DATE:  MARCH 21, 2023 
 
DEPARTMENT:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
 
BY:   BRIAN FOUCHT, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 
 
TITLE:   RESOLUTION AFFECTING THE DISPOSITION OF PARKLETS  
 
 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION(S): 
 

Approve a resolution ordering the removal of parklets used for retail services, and directing the City 
Manager to make funds available to defray the cost of removal by April 28, 2023, 60 days after the 
date of lifting of the State of Emergency due to COVID-19 by the State of California. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
In April 2020 the City began meeting weekly with its downtown businesses to develop a plan in 
response to the ongoing Public Health Emergency. Thereafter,  the City Council adopted Resolution 
2020-24, enabling the establishment of outdoor shopping and dining via expansion of businesses 
into the right of way. Third Street was converted to a single, one-way lane to enable this expansion. 
Resulting parklets were originally approved for a three-month period ending December 31, 2020. 
On November 10, 2020, the City Council agreed to extend the parklets until March 30, 2021, and 
thereafter agreed to successive extensions to September 30, 2021 and March 30, 2022 pending 
adoption of an ongoing policy.  
 
During the referenced hearings, the subject of “permanence” has involved issues of non-conformity, 
long term planning and design of the Third Street streetscape, public safety, infrastructure, 
relationship to buildings, structures and landscaping within the Third Street Historic District and 
cost of removal. It is established that to allow permanent “parklet” type outdoor commercial use  
would first require a thorough evaluation of the historic Third Street district streetscape.  
 
City Council Resolution 2022-21 directed the City Manager to cease issuing Encroachment Permits 
for parklet construction and requested input from the EDCAC regarding continuance of parklets.  
Thereafter, the City Council adopted Resolution 2022-40 establishing a policy for ongoing 
disposition of parklets as follows:    
 

• Parklets are generally perceived to be beneficial to the community and to the sponsoring 
business.  

 

• There are noted adverse effects of parklets; however, the benefits outweigh the noted 
adverse effects. 

 



    Item #7.A    
              City Council Meeting 

         March 21, 2023 

2 

 

 

• Parklets should not be prevalent on Third Street in the short term.  As a means of limiting 
noted short term adverse effects, the present parklet experience should not be expanded.   

 
• It is important to know and understand the attitudes and perspectives of the community, 

business owners and visitors. 
 

• Parklets should remain until the Third Street Master Plan construction begins. Third Street 
Master Plan parklet/plaza concepts should be shaped by referenced surveys and 
testimonials. The parklet experience should be re-imagined for use in the context of the 
Third Street Master Plan. 

 
The Governor’s office, on October 17, 2022 announced that the COVID 19 State of Emergency will 
end on February 28, 2023, and the State will rely on ongoing, enhanced  public health initiatives to 
drive down rates and severity of infection. It is important to recognize that the Governor’s action 
does not stipulate that COVID is no longer a threat. Instead, the Governor recognizes the importance 
of continued emphasis on public health practices via covid19.ca.gov.  On December 20, 2022, the 
City Council directed the City Manager to return with a resolution that would institute a revised 
policy affecting parklets that would go into effect at such time that the COVID State Of Emergency 
is lifted, February 28, 2023.   
 
The recommended policy would: 1)  enable restaurants and bars to retain parklets until the Third 
Street Master Plan is under construction, or until the City Council orders their removal; and 
reimburse parklet owners for reasonable cost of removal. Staff has obtained information from former 
parklet owners, contractors  and various websites that it will cost approximately $5 per square foot to 
demolish and remove an existing deck of the type constructed on Third Street, i.e. without anchored 
footings. Assuming a parklet is 9’ x 18’ The cost of removal is approximately $800.00.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The attached resolution will implement a revised policy as follows: 
  
1. Continue the restriction prohibiting encroachment permits for new or replacement parklets; 

 
2. Terminate the current encroachment permit authorization for parklet used for retail purposes  

and require removal of such parklets by April 28, 2023. Offset the cost of parklet removal at a 
cost not to exceed $5.00 per square foot.  
 

3. Retain existing parklets established for eating establishments and bars and require completion 
of an annual inspection and implementation of any safety requirements of the Fire Marshall 
and Building Official. 
 

 
ATTACHED:  
 
DRAFT City Council Resolution  

https://covid19.ca.gov/


Page | 1 
 

RESOLUTION 2023- XX 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN JUAN 
BAUTISTA ESTABLISHING THE TERM OF PARKLETS ENCROACHMENT 

PERMIT 
 

WHEREAS, in an effort to control the pandemic caused by the COVID-19 virus and 
in response to the Governor’s COVID - 19 Emergency Declaration, City Council declared a 
State of Emergency March 17, 2020; and 

 
WHEREAS, the shelter in place health orders that followed the State Of Emergency 

closed all but essential businesses; and 
 
WHEREAS, this closure of businesses was harmful to the City's economy and the 

City, among many other things, initiated the Transformation of Third Street by adopting 
Resolution 2020-24, on May 19, 2020; and 

 
WHEREAS, to implement the Transformation of Third Street, business owners were 

offered the opportunity to expand their business onto the public right-of-way and build decks, 
also known as "parklets," where customers could sit safely and enjoy their services; and 

 
WHEREAS, in an effort to protect the historic nature of the downtown, parklets were 

required to be built in compliance with Guidelines adopted via City Council Resolution 2021-
61; and 

 
WHEREAS, the parklet program was approved by the City Council for a period of 

six months ending December 31, 2020, and serially extended until March 30, 2021, February 16, 
2021 September 30, 2021, March 30 2022, and May 31, 2022 via Resolution 2022-21; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has approved and budgeted funds for the preparation of a 

Master Streetscape Plan (Third Street Master Plan) for the San Juan Bautista Downtown with a 
focus on Third Street Mixed Use area and desires to utilize the community’s experience with 
parklets to evaluate the character of public improvements within the Downtown area; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has requested and considered the evaluation and 

recommendation of the City of San Juan Bautista Economic Development Citizens Advisory 
Committee (EDCAC) established, in part, for this purpose; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has considered that the Governor has lifted the COVID 19 

State of Emergency on February 28, 2023.  Notwithstanding this announcement, the City Council is 
aware that COVID-19 variants represent a continuing threat to public health, safety and general 
welfare;   

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL hereby 
directs the City Manager to implement the following measures:    

  
1. Continue the restriction prohibiting new or replacement parklets; 

 



Page | 2 
 

2.   Terminate the current encroachment permit authorization for parklets used for retail purposes.    Parklets 
used for retail purposes shall be removed no later than April 30, 2023. Parklet owners required to 
remove parklets shall be compensated from the General Fund for the reasonable cost of removal, not 
to exceed $5.00 per square foot or $800.00, whichever is less.     
 

2. Retain existing parklets established for eating establishments and bars and require annual inspection 
by the Fire Marshall and Building Official to ensure public health and safety.  
 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of San Juan Bautista on the 
21st day of March 2023 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:   
 
NOES:  
 
ABSENT:        
 
ABSTAIN:      
 

APPROVED:  
 
 

______________________ 
        Leslie Q. Jordan, Mayor  
 
 
ATTEST:      
 
 
______________________________ 
 Elizabeth Soto, Deputy City Clerk 





























Item # 7.B 
City Council Meeting 

March 21, 2023 

Page | 1 
 

CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA 
CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 
 

 
 
DATE:   MARCH 21, 2023  
 
DEPARTMENT: FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 
BY:     
 
FROM:   BOB MARTIN DEL CAMPO, FIRE CHIEF 
 
TITLE:  Ordinance No. 2023- xx, Amending the Chapter Title of Chapter 5.1 

and Sections 5-1-100 and 5-1-105, Repealing Sections, 5-1-150, 5-1-160, 
and 5-1-170 of Article 1 of Chapter 5.1 of Title 5 “Public  Health, Safety 
and Welfare,” of the City of San Juan Bautista Municipal Code to 
Adopt By Reference in its Entirety the California Building Standards 
Code 2022 Edition of the California Fire Code and Appendices, Title 
24, Part 9, of the California Code of Regulations, with Certain 
Exceptions, Modifications and Additions Required by Local Climatic, 
Geological or Topographical  Conditions, and Approving Findings to 
Support Local Modifications, and Setting a Public Hearing on the 
Matter for Tuesday, April 18, 2023.   

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  

Staff recommends that the City Council read by title only, waive full and further reading, and 
introduce these changes by an Ordinance of the City Council of the City of San Juan Bautista 
(attached as Exhibit A) amending the Chapter Title of Chapter 5.1., amending Sections 5-1-100 
and 5-1-105, repealing sections 5-150, 5-1-160, and 5-1-170 of Chapter 5.1, Article 1, of Title 5 
“Public Health, Safety and Welfare” of the San Juan Bautista Municipal Code and adopting by 
reference in its entirety the 2022 Edition California Fire Code and Appendices, Title 24, Part 9, of 
the California Code of Regulations with certain exceptions, modifications and additions required 
by local climatic, geological or topographical conditions, and approve findings to support local 
modifications, and set and direct publication for a public hearing on the matter for April 18, 2023. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   

Fire Protection agencies are required to enforce the current State Building Standards Codes, and 
local jurisdictions are allowed to make amendments to those state standards when justified by local 
topographical, climatic and geographical conditions which must be supported by findings. 

  

The International Code Council promulgates the International Fire Code, a nationally recognized 
compilation of rules and regulations. The International Code Council has conducted open code 



Item # 7.B 
City Council Meeting 

March 21, 2023 

Page | 2 
 

hearings that permit participation by national, state, and local code officials as well as industry 
representatives, consultants, and other private parties with an interest in the International Fire 
Code. The International Fire Code has been printed and published as a Code in book form with the 
meaning of Section 50022.1 of the Government Code of the State of California.  

Under this adopting ordinance, specific amendments to building standards are proposed for 
adoption that are more restrictive than those contained within the 2022 Edition of the California 
Fire Code as adopted by the California Building Standards Commission and published as the 2022 
Edition of the California Fire Code.  

Under this adopting ordinance, existing codes in the San Juan Bautista Municipal code would be 
no longer valid as they are otherwise incorporated into the 2022 Fire Code or contradict the 
proposed ordinance. Therefore, staff is proposing to repeal Section 5-1-150 “Automatic Fire 
Extinguishing Systems” as this is addressed in the 2022 Fire code under Section 903 “Automatic 
Sprinkler Systems.” Additionally, we propose repealing Section 5-1-160 “General Provisions for 
Safety” because they are identified in the 2022 California Fire Code, “Key Boxes” is addressed in 
Section 506 and “Locks” is identified in Section 506.1.1. Lastly, we propose repealing Section 5-
1-170 “Special Regulations,” which calls out street fairs and their permits as these are identified 
in Section 105 of the 2022 Fire Code.  

Under the provisions of Section 18941.5 of the Health and Safety Code, local amendments must 
be based on climatic, topographical, and geological conditions. The findings for these local 
amendments are set forth in the Ordinance attached as Exhibit A. 

It is clearly understood that the adoption of such amendments may not prevent the incidence of 
fire, the implementation of these various amendments to the Fire Code is intended to reduce the 
potential loss of life and property and damage to the environment caused thereby. In accordance 
with California Government Code §50022.3 the City Council should direct that a public hearing 
shall be set on this ordinance after its introduction for Tuesday, April 18, 2023, for which notice, 
in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit B, shall be published in accordance with 
Government Code §6066. Copies of the ordinance proposed for adoption will be available for 
public inspection at the office of the City Clerk. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

N/A 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Ordinance 2023-XX – 2022 City of San Juan Bautista Fire Code including Amendments – 
Exhibit A  

2. Public Notice – Notice of Public Hearing – Exhibit B 



Page | 1 
 

EXHIBIT A 
ORDINANCE NO 2023-____ 

  
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA AMENDING THE 

CHAPTER TITLE OF CHAPTER 5.1 AND SECTIONS 5-1-100 AND 5-1-105, 
REPEALING SECTIONS 5-1-150, 5-1-160, 5-1-170 OF ARTICLE 1 OF CHAPTER 5.1. 

OF TITLE 5 “PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELFARE” OF THE SAN JUAN 
BAUTISTA MUNICIPAL CODE TO ADOPT BY REFERENCE IN ITS ENTIRETY THE 
CALIFORNIA BULDING STANDARDS CODE  2022 EDITION OF THE CALIFORNIA 

FIRE CODE AND APPENDICES, TITLE 24, PART 9, OF THE CALIFORNIA CODE 
OF REGULATIONS WITH CERTAIN EXCEPTIONS, MODIFICATIONS AND 

ADDITIONS REQUIRED BY LOCAL CLIMATIC, GEOLOGICAL OR 
TOPOGRAPHICAL CONDITIONS; AND APPROVING FINDINGS TO SUPPORT 

LOCAL MODIFICATIONS. 
 

-o0o- 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 18941.5 of the California Health and Safety Code, the 
City may adopt the provisions of the California Fire Code by reference with certain exceptions, 
modifications and additions to provisions of the Code which are reasonably necessary to protect 
the health, welfare and safety of the citizens of San Juan Bautista because of local climatic, 
geological and topographical conditions; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the City Council has considered whether certain modifications to the 
California  Fire Code standards set forth herein are necessary in the City of San Juan Bautista due 
to local climatic, geological or topographical conditions; and.  
 
 WHEREAS, the factual findings made are valid and relate to the amendments made to the 
California Fire Code in this adoption; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council directed that a public hearing be held and duly noticed and 
published in accordance with California Government Code §50022.3, and said hearing is to be  
held on April 18, 2023, concerning the purpose of this Ordinance to adopt the 2022 California Fire 
Code with modifications to address unique local conditions; and 
  
 WHEREAS, this Ordinance was found to be categorically exempt from environmental 
review, per the provisions of Section 15061(b) (3) of the Guidelines to the California 
Environmental Quality Act. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA  
DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 



Page | 2 
 

1. Chapter 5.1 of Title 5 Public Health, Safety and Welfare Title Amended. Chapter 5.1 
title is hereby amended to read as follows:  

“CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE, 2022 EDITION”  
 
 2. Section 5-1-100 of Chapter 5-1“Adoption by reference” Amended:  Section 5-1-100 of 
Chapter 5-1 entitled “Adoption by reference” is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
“5-1-100 Adoption by reference. 
 
 The California Fire Code, 2022 Edition in its entirety, including Appendices, Title 24, 
Part 9, published by the California Building Standards Commission, and as modified by the 
amendments, additions set forth hereinafter, is adopted by reference, in accordance with the 
following findings, as the Fire Code of the City of San Juan Bautista.  

 
(A) Climate. The city, on average, experiences an approximate annual rainfall of eighteen 
inches. The heaviest months for rainfall can be expected between January and April. During 
winter months, the city may experience periods of heavy rain, which can cause local flooding. 
Due to the proximity of the Pacific Ocean, winter storms are often accompanied by high winds, 
which have uprooted trees and damaged power lines. The city has also experienced periods of 
heavy fog, which has delayed the responding fire apparatus and prevented early discovery of 
structure fires. Light to gusty winds occur during dry periods which, when coupled with highly 
flammable vegetation, can cause uncontrollable fires. With increased development spreading into 
brush covered coastal hill areas, wind driven fires could have severe consequences, as have been 
demonstrated on several occasions throughout the state. 

(B)    Geologic. The city is susceptible to seismic hazards resulting from movement along any 
one of several known faults. The most serious direct earthquake hazard threat is from the damage 
or collapse of buildings and other structures due to ground movement. In addition to damage 
caused by earthquakes, there is the possibility of earthquake-induced fires starting because of 
damage to gas lines, power lines or heat-producing appliances and the unavailability to water for 
fire control due to broken water mains. In the event of a major earthquake many areas of the city 
may not be accessible to emergency equipment and, if bridges or roads are damaged, the city 
may be isolated from outside assistance. 

(C)    Topographical. The city is divided by California State Highway 156. The freeway creates 
barriers which obstruct traffic patterns and delay response time for fire equipment. The water 
supply within the city would be directly affected by the topographical layout in the event of a 
major catastrophe.  

(D)    Conclusion. Local climatic, geologic and topographical conditions impact fire suppression 
efforts and the frequency, spread, intensity and size of fire involving structures in this 
community. Further, they impact potential damage to all structures from earthquake and 
subsequent fire. Therefore, it is found to be necessary that the California Fire Code be amended 
by this chapter to mitigate the effects of these conditions.”  

 3. Section 5-1-105 of Chapter 5-1 “Amendments – General” Amended. Section 5-1-



Page | 3 
 

105 of Chapter 5.1 entitled “Amendments – General” is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
“5-1-105 Amendments – General. 
 
 Set forth below are the amendments, additions and deletions to the California Fire Code, 
2022 Edition. Article and Section numbers used herein are those of the California Fire Code.    
 
101.1 Title. These regulations shall be known as the Fire Code for the City of San Juan Bautista, 
hereinafter referred to as “Fire Code.” 
 
101.2.1 Appendices. Provisions in all appendices to the 2022 California Fire Code are hereby 
adopted in their entirety and shall apply. 
 
102.1 Construction and design provisions. The construction and design provisions of this Code 
shall apply to:  
1. Structures, facilities and conditions arising after the adoption of this Code.  
2. Existing structures, facilities and conditions not legally in existence at the time of adoption of 
this Code.  
3. Existing structures, facilities and conditions when identified in specific Sections of this Code.  
4. Existing structures, facilities and conditions, which, in the opinion of the Fire Code Official, 
constitute a distinct hazard to life and property.  
5. Existing Structures Alterations and repairs.  
a. All new work performed in alterations and/or repairs to existing structures shall comply with 
the current provisions of this Chapter.  
b. When alterations and/or repairs result in the removal, alteration, modification, replacement 
and/or repair of fifty percent (50%) or more of the external walls of a building, or result in the 
removal, modification, replacement and/or repair of fifty percent (50%) or more of the existing 
internal structural and/or non-structural framework, independently or in combination thereof, 
within a five year period, the entire building shall be made to conform to the current provisions 
of this Chapter.  
c. Calculations of linear wall measurements shall be shown on all plans submitted for building 
permits, on the cover page in the project description of said plans.  
d. The determination under this section of the requirement for upgrading any existing structure to 
full conformance with current provisions of this Chapter shall be at the sole discretion of the Fire 
Code Official.  
 
 
103.0 Responsibility for enforcement.  
103.0.1 Within established fire protection districts and community services districts, 
responsibility for enforcement of this Code shall be under the direction of the Fire Chief within 
each district. 
  
103.0.2 In areas of San Juan Bautista responsibility for enforcement of this Code shall be under 
the direction of the Fire Chief.. 
  



Page | 4 
 

104.1.1 Police powers. The fire code official and his deputies shall have the powers of police 
officers in performing their duties under this Code. When requested to do so by the fire code 
official, the chief of police of the jurisdiction is authorized to assign such available police 
officers as necessary to assist the fire code official in enforcing the provisions of this Code. 
 
105.5.0 Agricultural Explosive Devices. An operational permit is required for storage or use of 
any agricultural explosive device including “bird bombs”. 
 
112.2 Owner/occupant responsibility. Correction and abatement of violations of this Code shall 
be the responsibility of the owner. If an occupant creates, or allows to be created, hazardous 
conditions in violation of this Code, the occupant shall be held responsible for the correction and 
abatement of such hazardous conditions. 
 
112.4 Violation penalties. Persons who shall violate any provision of this Code or shall fail to 
comply with any of the requirements thereof or shall erect, install, alter, repair or do work in 
violation of the approved construction documents or directive of the fire code official, or of a 
permit or certificate used under provisions of this Code, shall be guilty of an infraction, 
punishable by a fine in conformance with the County Fire Department. 
 
113.4 Failure to comply. Any person who shall continue any work after having been served with 
a stop work order, except such work as that person is directed to perform to remove a violation 
or unsafe condition, shall be guilty of an infraction as specified in Section 112.4 of this Code. 
 
202 Definitions  
ALL WEATHER SURFACE. A hard paved road surface constructed to the minimum standards 
adopted by the jurisdiction.  
 
BRIDGE. A structure to carry a roadway over a depression or obstacle.  
IDLE PALLET. A pallet or similar product storage and/or lifting device not currently in use and 
empty of product. 
 
503.2.6.1 Private bridge engineering. Every private bridge hereafter constructed shall meet the 
following engineering requirements:  
1. The weight shall be designed for a minimum of HS-20 loading as prescribed by the AASHTO.  
2. The unobstructed vertical clearance shall be not less than fifteen (15) feet clear.  
3. The width shall be a minimum of twenty (20) feet clear. The Fire Code Official may require 
additional width when the traffic flow may be restricted or reduce the width to a minimum of 
twelve (12) feet for Occupancy Group U or R-3 occupancies.  
4. The maximum grade change of the approach to and from any private bridge shall not exceed 
eight percent for a minimum distance of ten (10) feet.  
 
503.2.6.2 Private bridge certification. Every private bridge hereafter constructed shall be 
engineered by a licensed professional engineer knowledgeable and experienced in the 
engineering and design of bridges. Certification that the bridge complies with the design 
standards required by this Code and the identified standards, and that the bridge was constructed 
to those standards, shall be provided by the licensed engineer, in writing, to the Fire Code 



Page | 5 
 

Official. Every private bridge, including existing and those constructed under this Code, shall be 
certified as to its maximum load limits every ten (10) years or whenever deemed necessary by 
the fire code official. Such recertification shall be by a licensed professional engineer 
knowledgeable and experienced in the engineering and design of bridges. All fees charged for 
the purpose of certification or recertification of private bridges shall be at the owner’s expense. 
 
503.2.7 Grade. The grade of fire apparatus access roads shall be no greater than fifteen (15) 
percent unless specifically approved by the Fire Code Official. 
 
503.2.7.1 Paving. All fire apparatus access roads over eight (8) percent shall be paved with a 
minimum 0.17 feet of asphaltic concrete on 0.34 feet of aggregate base. All fire apparatus access 
roads over fifteen (15) percent where approved shall be paved with perpendicularly grooved 
concrete. 
 
503.7 Fire apparatus access road names. All fire apparatus access road names shall be issued or 
approved by the appropriate governmental agency. 
 
506.1 Required.  Where access to or within a structure or an area is restricted because of secured 
openings or where immediate access is necessary for life-saving or fire-fighting purposes, the 
fire code official is authorized to require a key box or other approved emergency access device to 
be installed in an approved location.  The key box or other approved emergency access device 
shall be of an approved type and shall contain keys or other information to gain necessary access 
as required by the fire code official.  Where a key box is used, it shall be listed in accordance 
with UL 1037. This jurisdiction utilizes the KNOX Box Security Systems. 
 
507.5.2 Inspection, testing and maintenance. Fire hydrant systems shall be subject to periodic 
tests as required by the Fire Code Official. Fire hydrant systems shall be maintained in an 
operative condition at all times and shall be repaired where defective. Additions, repairs, 
alterations and servicing shall comply with approved standards. When required by the Fire Code 
Official, hydrants shall be painted in accordance with the most current edition of NFPA 291. 
 
605.3.1 Spark arresters.  
605.3.1.1 An approved spark arrester shall be installed on all chimneys, incinerators, 
smokestacks or similar devices using solid fuel for conveying smoke or hot gases to the outer air.   
605.3.1.2 Spark arresters shall have openings in accordance with Section 2113.9.2(3) of the 
California Building Code and Section 1003.9.2 of the California Residential Code with minimum 
openings of 3/8” and maximum openings of ½”.  
 
901.1.1 Responsibility. The owner of the protected premises shall be responsible for all fire 
protection systems within the protected premises, whether existing or installed under this code. 
 
901.2.2 Additional documentation. Additional documentation as required by the Fire Code 
Official shall be provided to the Fire Code Official in an acceptable format. 
 
901.4 Installation. Fire protection systems shall be maintained in accordance with the original 
installation standards for that system. All systems shall be extended, altered, or augmented as 



Page | 6 
 

necessary to maintain and continue protection whenever the building is altered, remodeled or 
added to. Alterations to fire protection systems shall be done in accordance with applicable 
standards. 
 
901.4.8 Nonoperational equipment. Any fire protection equipment that is no longer in service 
shall be removed. 
 
901.6.4 Qualifications of Inspection, Testing and Maintenance Personnel. All personnel 
performing any inspection, testing or maintenance of any fire protection system shall be 
qualified. Where such inspection, testing and maintenance is performed by an outside service 
company, the company shall be appropriately licensed by the California Contractors State 
License Board in accordance with the California Business & Professions Code or by the 
California State Fire Marshal. 
 
901.6.5 Additional records. All documentation generated during any scheduled inspection or test 
of any fire protection system, whether required or voluntarily installed, shall be forwarded to the 
Fire Code Official within fifteen (15) calendar days after the date of the inspection or test. 
 
901.11 Fire Protection Features for Plant Processing and Extraction Facilities  
 
901.11.1 Scope. This section applies to occupancies regulated by Chapter 39 of this Code.  
 
901.11.2 Definitions.  
901.11.2.1 Plant processing. Plant processing shall include all plant post-harvest operations, 
excluding retail sales of plant and related products.  
901.11.2.2 Indoor cultivation. Indoor cultivation shall be defined as all nursery or cultivation 
conducted in other than Group U occupancies (greenhouses).  
 
901.11.3 Fire Protection Systems. All buildings or portions thereof housing plant post-harvest or 
indoor cultivation operations shall be protected as defined in this section.  
901.11.3.1 Fire Sprinklers. Fire sprinklers shall be installed in accordance with 901.11.3.1.1, 
901.11.3.1.2, or 901.11.3.1.3  
901.11.3.1.1 Fire sprinklers shall be installed in all buildings or portions thereof; such fire 
sprinkler systems shall be designed to Ordinary Group II design standards in the latest adopted 
edition of NFPA 13 and Section 903 of this code. 
901.11.3.1.2 If the occupancy is classified as a Group H Occupancy the fire sprinkler system 
may be required to be designed and installed as an Extra Hazard fire sprinkler system 
901.11.3.1.3 Where permitted by the fire code official and not otherwise required by this code or 
the CBC, fire sprinklers may be eliminated in approved buildings less than 500 square feet.  
 
901.11.3.2 Fire Alarm Systems. Fire alarm systems shall be installed in all buildings or portions 
thereof; such fire alarm systems shall include both fire sprinkler system monitoring and complete 
occupant notification as specified in the latest adopted edition of NFPA 72 and Section 907 of 
this code.  
 



Page | 7 
 

901.11.3.3 Special Hazard Systems. Where specified by appropriate UL listings for extraction 
booths utilizing volatile solvents, dry chemical fire protection systems shall be installed 
according to the latest adopted edition of NFPA 17. If there is no UL listing for the extraction 
booth, a dry chemical fire protection system shall be installed.  
 
901.11.3.4 Portable Fire Extinguishers. Portable fire extinguishers shall be installed in 
accordance with NFPA 10 and Section 906 of this code. 
 
903.2 Where required. Approved automatic sprinkler systems shall be provided in all new 
buildings and structures constructed, moved into or relocated within the jurisdiction.  
Exceptions:  
(1) Structures not classified as Group R occupancies and not more than five hundred (500) 
square feet in total floor area.  
(2) Detached agricultural buildings, as defined by this code and the CBC, located at least one 
hundred feet (100) from any other structure or the property line, whichever is closer.  
(3) Accessory structures not classified as R occupancies associated with existing non-sprinklered 
R-3 occupancies (one- or two-family dwellings) and less than one thousand five hundred (1500) 
square feet in total fire area.  
(4) Where an insufficient water supply exists to provide for an automatic fire sprinkler system 
and where the Fire Code Official permits alternate protection. 
 
The following Sections are amended by changing requirements to five hundred (500) square feet 
for fire sprinkler installation, as follows (the complete text of the section is not provided):  
903.2.1.1 Group A-1. Change twelve thousand (12,000) square feet to five hundred (500) square 
feet.  
903.2.1.2 Group A-2. Change five thousand (5,000) square feet to five hundred (500) square feet.  
903.2.1.3 Group A-3. Change twelve thousand (12,000) square feet to five hundred (500) square 
feet.  
903.2.1.4 Group A-4. Change twelve thousand (12,000) square feet to five hundred (500) square 
feet.  
903.2.1.5 Group A-5. Change one thousand (1,000) square feet to five hundred (500) square feet.  
903.2.3 Group E. Change twelve thousand (12,000) square feet to five hundred (500) square feet.  
903.2.4 Group F-1. Change twelve thousand (12,000) square feet to five hundred (500) square 
feet.  
903.2.4.1 Group F-1. Change two thousand five hundred (2,500) square feet for woodworking 
operations to five hundred (500) square feet.  
903.2.7-1 Group M. Change twelve thousand (12,000) square feet to five hundred (500) square 
feet.  
903.2.7-3 Group M. Change twenty-four thousand (24,000) square feet to five hundred (500) 
square feet. 
903.2.9 Group S-1. Change twelve thousand (12,000) square feet to five hundred (500) square 
feet.  
903.2.9.1 Repair Garages. Change ten thousand (10,000) square feet (2 story buildings) and 
twelve thousand (12,000) square feet (1 story buildings) to five hundred (500) square feet.  
903.2.9.2 Bulk storage of tires. Change twenty thousand (20,000) cubic feet to five hundred 
(500) square feet. 



Page | 8 
 

903.2.8 Group R. An automatic sprinkler system installed in accordance with Section 903.3 shall 
be provided in all buildings with a Group R fire area, including, but not limited to, one- and two-
family dwellings, townhomes, and manufactured homes and mobile homes located outside of 
licensed mobile home parks hereafter constructed, moved into or relocated within the 
jurisdiction, including all additions to buildings already equipped with automatic fire sprinkler 
systems. 
(Exceptions remain per 2022 California Fire Code) 
 
903.3.1.1.1 -7 Passenger elevator shafts or associated passenger elevator mechanical rooms, 
where elevator shafts are constructed with a 2–hour fire resistive method. 
 
Section 903.3.1.1.2 of the California Fire Code is deleted. 
 
903.3.1.2 NFPA 13R sprinkler systems. Automatic sprinkler systems in Group R occupancies up 
to and including four stories in height shall be permitted to be installed throughout in accordance 
with NFPA 13R as amended in Chapter 47 of this Code.  
903.3.1.2.1 Balconies and decks. Sprinkler protection shall be provided for exterior balconies, 
decks and ground floor patios of dwelling units were the building is of Type V construction, 
provided there is a roof or deck above. Sidewall sprinklers that are used to protect such areas 
shall be permitted to be located such that their deflectors are within 1 inch to 6 inches below the 
structural members and a maximum distance of fourteen (14) inches below the deck of the 
exterior balconies and decks that are constructed of open wood joist construction.  
903.3.1.2.3 Attics. Where NFPA 13R sprinkler systems are installed, all attic areas shall be 
provided with sprinkler protection in accordance with NFPA 13.  
903.3.1.2.4 Sprinkler control valves. Where NFPA 13R sprinkler systems are installed, sprinkler 
system control valves shall be installed in accordance with NFPA 13.  
903.3.1.2.5 Bathrooms. Automatic sprinklers shall be installed in all bathrooms, regardless of 
square footage, where an electrical receptacle is installed.  
903.3.1.2.6 Accessible storage areas. Automatic sprinklers shall be installed in all accessible 
storage areas.  
903.3.1.2.7 Under-stair spaces. Automatic sprinklers shall be installed in all under-stair spaces 
including all under-stair closets. 
903.3.1.3 NFPA 13D sprinkler systems. Automatic fire sprinkler systems installed in one and 
two-family dwellings, Group R-3 and R-4 congregate living facilities and townhouses shall be 
permitted to be installed throughout in accordance with NFPA 13D. The requirements of this 
section supersede the requirements of the California Residential Code.  
903.3.1.3.1 All fire sprinkler systems installed in one- and two-family dwellings shall be tested 
for leakage by undergoing a hydrostatic test made at 200 psi for two-hour duration.  
903.3.1.3.2 Each water system supplying both domestic and fire protection systems shall have a 
single indicating-type control valve, arranged to shut off both the domestic and sprinkler 
systems. A separate shut-off valve for the domestic system only shall be permitted to be 
installed. The location of the control valve shall be approved by the Fire Code Official.  
903.3.1.3.3 Automatic sprinklers shall be installed in all bathrooms, regardless of square footage, 
where an electrical receptacle is installed.  
903.3.1.3.4 Automatic sprinklers shall be installed in all attached garages and other accessory 
structures.  



Page | 9 
 

903.3.1.3.5 Automatic sprinklers shall be installed in all accessible storage areas.  
903.3.1.3.5.1 Automatic sprinklers shall be installed in all under-stair spaces including all 
closets.  
903.3.1.3.6 Local water flow alarms shall be provided on all sprinkler systems. Local water flow 
alarms shall be powered from the main kitchen refrigerator circuit. The local water flow alarm 
shall be clearly audible from within the master bedroom at an audibility level of not less than 75 
dBa. Where no kitchen exists in the building, the water flow alarm shall be powered from the 
bathroom lighting circuit. As required by the fire code official, interior audible notification 
appliances or additional water flow alarms are required to be installed at locations specified by 
the fire code official. 
903.3.1.3.7 Automatic fire sprinklers shall be installed to protect all furnaces and heating system 
appliances. 
903.3.1.3.8 A passive purge shall be installed in the master bathroom if served by a public water 
system per local water purveyor.  A placard must be posted adjacent to the fire sprinkler riser. 
 
903.4.1 Monitoring. Alarm, supervisory and trouble signals shall be distinctly different and shall 
be automatically transmitted to an approved central station, remote supervising station or 
proprietary supervising station as defined in NFPA 72, or, when approved by the Fire Code 
Official, shall sound an audible signal at a constantly attended location. The fire alarm system 
installed to transmit such signals shall be considered a building fire alarm system.  
(Exceptions remain unchanged) 
 
903.4.2 Alarms. One exterior approved audible appliance shall be connected to every automatic 
sprinkler system in an approved location. Sprinkler water-flow alarm devices shall be activated 
by water flow equivalent to the flow of a single sprinkler of the smallest orifice size installed in 
the system. Where a building fire alarm system is installed, actuation of the automatic sprinkler 
system shall actuate the building fire alarm system. Interior alarm notification appliances shall be 
installed as required by Section 903.4.2.1. 
 
903.4.2.1 Where an automatic fire sprinkler system is installed in a building with more than one 
tenant or with over one hundred (100) sprinkler heads, audible and visible notification appliances 
shall be installed throughout the building as follows:  
a. Audible notification appliances shall be installed so as to be audible at fifteen (15) dBa above 
average sound pressure level throughout the building.  
b. Visible notification appliances shall be installed in all public and common use areas, restrooms 
and corridors in accordance with the spacing requirements of NFPA 72.  
c. Visible notification appliances can be eliminated in normally unoccupied portions of buildings 
where permitted by the Fire Code Official.  
 
EXCEPTION: The requirements of this section do not apply to Group R-3 Occupancies. 
 
903.4.3 Floor control valves. Approved indicating control valves and water flow switches shall 
be provided at the point of connection to the riser on each floor in all buildings over one story in 
height and shall be individually annunciated as approved by the Fire Code Official. 
 



Page | 10 
 

904.13.2 System interconnection. The actuation of the fire extinguishing system shall 
automatically shut down all fuel and electrical power located under the hood, except for the 
electrical power to the exhaust air supply. The fuel and electrical supply reset shall be manual. 
 
904.13.5.2 Extinguishing system service. Automatic fire extinguishing systems shall be serviced 
by a CSLB licensed C-16 contractor or a CSFM licensed “A” licensee at least every six months 
and after any activation of the system. Inspection shall be performed by the owner at least 
monthly in accordance with the currently adopted edition of NFPA 17-A. The service contractor 
shall review the records of monthly inspections every six months, and deficiencies shall be 
reported to the fire code official. A service report shall be forwarded to the fire code official by 
the licensed service contractor within 15 days after every service on the appropriate AES form.   
 
907.1.6 Multiple Fire Alarm Systems. Multiple fire alarm systems within a single protected 
premise are not permitted, unless specifically authorized by the Fire Code Official. 
 
907.2 Exception 1. The manual fire alarm box is not required for fire alarm control units 
dedicated to elevator recall control. 
 
907.6.5 Access. Access shall be provided to each fire alarm system component for periodic 
inspection, maintenance and testing. 
 
907.6.6.5 Zone transmittal. Where required by the fire code official, fire alarm signals shall be 
transmitted by zone to the supervising station and retransmitted by zone to the public fire service 
communications center. 

 
907.6.6 Monitoring. Fire alarm systems, whether required by this Chapter or the California 
Building Code or voluntarily installed, shall be monitored by an approved supervising station in 
accordance with NFPA 72 and this Section. 
 
907.6.6.6 Means of communication. The use of either POTS or cable telephone lines with a 
digital alarm communicator transmitter shall not be permitted.  
EXCEPTION. Where no other communications methods are available, the use of telephone lines 
shall be permitted to be used on a temporary basis not to exceed one year from the date of final 
acceptance test or until permitted alternate means of communications are available. 
 
907.7.2 Completion documents. The following documentation shall be provided at the time of 
acceptance testing for all fire alarm system installations:  
1. A record of completion in accordance with NFPA 72.  
2. A contractor’s statement verifying that the system has been installed in accordance with the 
approved plans and specifications and has been 100% tested in accordance with NFPA 72.  
3. A contractor’s affidavit of personnel qualifications, indicating that all personnel involved with 
the installation of the fire alarm system meet the qualification requirements of the Fire Code 
Official. 
 



Page | 11 
 

1205.1.1 Signing and Marking. In addition to signing and marking requirements of the California 
Building Code and the California Residential Code, the following signing and marking is 
required:  
 
1205.1.1.1 Main Panel Exterior Marking. A placard is required to be permanently affixed to the 
main service disconnect panel. The placard shall be red in color with white capital letters at least 
1/2” in height and in a non-serif font, to read “SOLAR DISCONNECT INSIDE PANEL.” The 
placard shall be constructed of weather-resistant, durable plastic with engraved letters, or other 
approved material.  
 
1205.1.1.2 Circuit Disconnecting Means Marking. A permanent label is to be affixed adjacent to 
the circuit breaker controlling the inverter or other photovoltaic system electrical controller. The 
label shall have contrasting color capital letters at least 3/8” in height and in a non—serif font, to 
read “SOLAR DISCONNECT.” The label shall be constructed of durable adhesive material or 
other approved material.  
 
1205.1.1.3 Secondary Power Sources. Where photovoltaic systems are interconnected to battery 
systems, generator backup systems, or other secondary power systems, additional signage 
acceptable to the fire code official shall be required indicating the location of the secondary 
power source shutoff switch.  
 
1205.1.1.4 Installer Information. Signage acceptable to the fire code official indicating the name 
and emergency telephone number of the installing contractor shall be required to be installed 
adjacent to the main disconnect. 
 
Section 1205.2.1, Exceptions 1 and 2 of the California Fire Code are deleted in their entirety.  
 
1205.2.1.4 Hip and Valley Layout. Hip and Valley Layouts. Modules shall be located no closer 
than one and one-half feet (1-1/2’) to a hip or valley if modules are to be placed on both sides of 
a hip or valley. Where modules are located on only one side of a hip or valley that is of equal 
length, the modules shall be permitted to be placed directly adjacent to the hip or valley. 
 
1206.15 Signage acceptable to the fire code official shall be required indicating the location of 
the stationary fuel cell power system. 
 
3905.3. Fire Protection Systems. Fire protection systems in occupancies regulated by this chapter 
shall be in accordance with Section 901.11 of this Code. 
 
D103.2 Grade. Fire apparatus access roads shall not exceed fifteen (15) percent in grade with a 
maximum side slope of five (5) percent. 
EXCEPTION: Grades steeper than fifteen (15) percent, if approved by the Fire Code Official, 
shall be paved with perpendicularly grooved concrete. 
APPENDIX Q: STANDARD FIRE CONDITIONS FOR SINGLE FAMILY DWELLINGS  
 
SECTION Q101 GENERAL  
 



Page | 12 
 

Q101.1 Scope. Applications for the construction or remodel of single family dwellings, 
including one- and two-family dwellings, townhomes, modular and manufactured homes, and 
mobile homes outside of established mobile home parks, shall be subject to the fire conditions in 
this appendix when conditioned by the Fire Code Official.  
 
Q101.2 Conflicting sections. Where provisions in this appendix conflict with other sections of 
this Code or other appendices, the provisions of this appendix shall prevail unless otherwise 
directed by the Fire Code Official.  
 
SECTION Q102 ROADS  
 
Q102.1 General. These conditions will be used primarily when conditioning a subdivision or 
other project that requires roads. Roads identified in this Section are vehicular access to more 
than two (2) parcels; more than four (4) residential units; or access to any industrial or 
commercial occupancy. Includes public and private streets and lanes.  
 
Q102.2 Road access. (FIRE 001). Access roads shall be required for every building when any 
portion of the exterior wall of the first story is located more than one hundred fifty (150) feet 
from fire department access. All roads shall be constructed to provide a minimum of two (2) ten 
(10) feet wide traffic lanes with an unobstructed vertical clearance of not less than fifteen (15) 
feet. The roadway surface shall provide unobstructed access to conventional drive vehicles 
including sedans and fire apparatus and shall be an all-weather surface designed to support the 
imposed load of fire apparatus (75,000 pounds). Each road shall have an approved name.  
 
Q102.3 Roadway engineering. (FIRE 002). The grade for all roads shall not exceed fifteen 
percent (15%) with a maximum side slope of five percent (5%). Where road grades are 8 percent 
(8%) or less, an all-weather aggregate base is required at a minimum or as required in other 
sections of the City of San Juan Bautista Code. Where road grades exceed eight percent (8%), a 
minimum structural roadway surface of 0.17 feet of asphaltic concrete on 0.34 feet of aggregate 
base shall be required. The length of vertical curves in roadways, exclusive of gutters, ditches 
and drainage structures designed to hold or divert water, shall not be less than one hundred (100) 
feet. No roadway turn shall have a horizontal inside radius of less than fifty (50) feet. A roadway 
turn radius of fifty (50) to one hundred (100) feet is required to have an additional four (4) feet of 
roadway surface. A roadway turn radius of one hundred (100) to two hundred (200) feet is 
required to have an additional two (2) feet of roadway surface. Roadway turnarounds shall be 
required on dead-end roads in excess of one hundred fifty (150) feet of surface length. The 
minimum turning radius for a turnaround shall be forty (40) feet from the center line of the road. 
If a hammerhead/T is used, the top of the “T” shall be a minimum of sixty (60) feet in length.  
 
Q102.4 Dead end roads. 
 
Q102.4.1 Parcels less than one acre. (FIRE 003). For parcels less than one acre, the maximum 
length of a dead-end road, including all dead-end roads accessed from that dead-end road, shall 
not exceed eight hundred (800) feet. All dead-end road lengths shall be measured from the edge 
of the roadway surface at the intersection that begins the road to the end of the road surface at its 
furthest point. Where a dead-end road serves parcels of differing sizes, the shortest allowable 



Page | 13 
 

length shall apply. Each dead-end road shall have a turnaround constructed at its terminus. The 
minimum turning radius for a turnaround shall be forty (40) feet from the center line of the road. 
If a hammerhead/T is used, the top of the “T” shall be a minimum of sixty (60) feet in length.  
 
Q102.4.2 Parcels greater than one acre and not exceeding five acres (FIRE 004). For parcels 
greater than one acre and not exceeding five acres, the maximum length of a dead-end road, 
including all dead-end roads accessed from that dead-end road, shall not exceed one thousand 
three hundred twenty (1,320) feet. All dead-end road lengths shall be measured from the edge of 
the roadway surface at the intersection that begins the road to the end of the road surface at its 
furthest point. Where a dead-end road serves parcels of differing sizes, the shortest allowable 
length shall apply. Each dead-end road shall have a turnaround constructed at its terminus. The 
minimum turning radius for a turnaround shall be forty (40) feet from the center line of the road. 
If a hammerhead/T is used, the top of the “T” shall be a minimum of sixty (60) feet in length  
 
Q102.4.3 Parcels greater than five acres and not exceeding twenty (20) acres. (FIRE 005). For 
parcels greater than five acres and not exceeding twenty (20) acres, the maximum length of a 
dead-end road, including all dead-end roads accessed from that dead-end road, shall not exceed 
two thousand six hundred forty (2,640) feet. All dead-end road lengths shall be measured from 
the edge of the roadway surface at the intersection that begins the road to the end of the road 
surface at its furthest point. Where a dead-end road serves parcels of differing sizes, the shortest 
allowable length shall apply. Each dead-end road shall have turnarounds at its terminus and at no 
greater than one thousand three hundred twenty (1,320) foot intervals. The minimum turning 
radius for a turnaround shall be forty (40) feet from the center line of the road. If a 
hammerhead/T is used, the top of the “T” shall be a minimum of sixty (60) feet in length.  
 
Q102.4.4 Parcels greater than twenty (20) acres. (FIRE 006). For parcels greater than twenty 
(20) acres, the maximum length of a dead-end road, including all dead-end roads accessed from 
that dead-end road, shall not exceed five thousand two hundred eighty (5,280) feet. All dead-end 
road lengths shall be measured from the edge of the roadway surface at the intersection that 
begins the road to the end of the road surface at its furthest point. Where a dead-end road serves 
parcels of differing sizes, the shortest allowable length shall apply. Each dead-end road shall 
have turnarounds at its terminus and at no greater than one thousand three hundred twenty 
(1,320)-foot intervals. The minimum turning radius for a turnaround shall be forty (40) feet from 
the center line of the road. If a hammerhead/T is used, the top of the “T” shall be a minimum of 
sixty (60) feet in length.  
 
SECTION Q103 DRIVEWAYS, GATES, AND BRIDGES  
 
Q103.1 Driveways. (FIRE 007). Driveway identified in this Section is defined as a vehicle 
access that serves up to two (2) parcels with no more than two (2) residential units and any 
number on non-commercial or industrial buildings on each parcel. Driveways shall not be less 
than twelve (12) feet wide traffic lane and minimum fourteen (14) feet wide unobstructed 
clearance, with an unobstructed vertical clearance of not less than fifteen (15) feet. The grade for 
all driveways shall not exceed fifteen percent (15%) with a maximum side slope of five percent 
(5%). Where driveway grades are eight percent (8%) or less, an all-weather surface such as an 
aggregate base shall meet minimum fire requirements. Other types of material for driveways may 



Page | 14 
 

be required by the Code. Where the grade exceeds eight percent (8%), a minimum structural 
roadway surface of 0.17 feet of asphaltic concrete on 0.34 feet of aggregate base shall be 
required. The driveway surface shall be capable of supporting the imposed load of fire apparatus 
forty thousand (40,000) pounds, and be accessible by conventional-drive vehicles, including 
sedans. For driveways with turns ninety (90) degrees and less, the minimum horizontal inside 
radius of curvature shall be twenty-five (25) feet. For driveways with turns greater than ninety 
(90) degrees, the minimum horizontal inside radius curvature shall be twenty-eight (28) feet. For 
all driveway turns, an additional surface of four (4) feet shall be added. All driveways exceeding 
one hundred fifty (150) feet in length, but less than eight hundred (800) feet in length, shall 
provide a turnout near the midpoint of the driveway. Where the driveway exceeds eight hundred 
(800) feet, turnouts shall be provided at no greater than four hundred (400)-foot intervals. 
Turnouts shall be a minimum of twelve (12) feet wide and thirty (30) feet long with a minimum 
of twenty (25) foot taper at both ends. Turnarounds shall be required on driveways in excess of 
one hundred fifty (150) feet of surface length and shall be thirty (30) feet long with a minimum 
twenty-five (25) foot taper at both ends. Turnarounds shall be required on driveways in excess of 
one hundred fifty (150) feet of surface length and shall be located within fifty (50) feet of the 
primary building. The minimum turning radius for a turnaround shall be forty (40) feet from the 
center line of the driveway. If a hammerhead/T is used, the top of the “T” shall be a minimum of 
sixty (60) feet in length.  
 
Q103.2 Gates. (FIRE 008). All gates providing access from a road to a driveway shall be located 
at least thirty (30) feet from the roadway and shall open to allow a vehicle to stop without 
obstructing traffic on the road. Gate entrances shall be at least two (2) feet wider than the width 
of the traffic lane but in no case be less than fourteen (14) feet wide unobstructed and 
unobstructed vertical clearance of fifteen (15) feet. Where a one-way road with a single traffic 
lane provides access to a gated entrance, a forty (40) foot turning radius shall be used. Where 
gates are to be locked, the installation of a key box or other acceptable means for immediate 
access by emergency equipment may be required.  
 
Q103.3 Bridges. (FIRE 009). All new and reconstructed bridges shall be at least the width of the 
roadbed and berms, but in no case less than twelve (12) feet wide. Bridge width on all roads 
exceeding tertiary standards shall not be less than the width of the two lanes with berms. All 
bridges shall be designed for HS15-44 loading and have guardrails. Appropriate signage, 
including but not limited to, weight ratings or vertical clearance limitations, and one-way road or 
single-lane road conditions, shall be provided at both entrances to any bridge. One-lane bridges 
may be permitted if there is unobstructed visibility across the entire bridge, and turnouts are 
provided at both bridge ends. The fire authority may impose more stringent requirements for 
bridges.  
 
SECTION Q104 SIGNS AND ADDRESSES 
 
Q104.1 Road signs. (FIRE 010). All newly constructed or approved roads and streets shall be 
designated by names or numbers, posted on signs clearly visible and legible from the roadway. 
Size of letters, numbers and symbols for street and road signs shall be a minimum four-inch 
letter height, ½-inch stroke, and shall be a color that is reflective and clearly contrasts with the 
background color of the sign. All numerals shall be Arabic. Street and road signs shall be non-



Page | 15 
 

combustible and shall be visible and legible from both directions of vehicle travel for a distance 
of at least one hundred (100) feet. Height, visibility, legibility, and orientation of street and road 
signs shall be meet the provisions of the jurisdiction. This section does not require any entity to 
rename or renumber existing roads or streets, nor shall a roadway providing access only to a 
single commercial or industrial occupancy require naming or numbering. Signs required under 
this section identifying intersecting roads, streets and private lanes shall be placed at the 
intersection of those roads, streets and/or private lanes. Signs identifying traffic access or flow 
limitations (i.e., weight or vertical clearance limitations, dead-end road, one-way road or single 
lane conditions, etc.) shall be placed: (a) at the intersection preceding the traffic access 
limitation; and (b) not more than one hundred (100) feet before such traffic access limitation. 
Road, street and private lane signs required by this article shall be installed prior to final 
acceptance of road improvements by the Fire Code Official.  
 
Q104.2 Addresses for buildings. (FIRE 011). All buildings shall be issued an address in 
accordance with jurisdictional requirements. Each occupancy, including detached accessory 
dwelling units (ADU), except accessory buildings, shall have its own permanently posted 
address. When multiple occupancies exist within a single building, each individual occupancy 
shall be separately identified by its own address. Letters, numbers and symbols for addresses 
shall be a minimum of four-inch (4”) height, 1/2-inch stroke, contrasting with the background 
color of the sign, and shall be Arabic. Commercial Occupancy shall have a minimum of 18 inch 
to 24 inch sized address numbers located at the top corner of the building on approval from the 
fire official. The sign and numbers shall be reflective and made of a noncombustible material. 
Address signs shall be placed at each driveway entrance and at each driveway split. Address 
signs shall be and visible from both directions of travel along the road. In all cases, the address 
shall be posted at the beginning of construction and shall be maintained thereafter. Address signs 
along one-way roads shall be visible from both directions of travel. Where multiple addresses are 
required at a single driveway, they shall be mounted on a single sign. Where a roadway provides 
access solely to a single commercial occupancy, the address sign shall be placed at the nearest 
road intersection providing access to that site. Permanent address numbers shall be posted prior 
to requesting final clearance.  
 
SECTION Q105 WATER SUPPLY  
 
Q105.1 Water systems. (FIRE 012). The provisions of this condition shall apply when new 
parcels are approved by a local jurisdiction. The emergency water system shall be available on-
site prior to the completion of road construction, where a community water system is approved, 
or prior to the completion of building construction, where an individual system is approved. 
Approved water systems shall be installed and made serviceable prior to the time of construction. 
Water systems constructed, extended or modified to serve a new development, a change of use, 
or an intensification of use, shall be designed to meet, in addition to average daily demand, 
NFPA Standard 1142 or other adopted standards. The quantity of water required pursuant to this 
chapter shall be in addition to the domestic demand and shall be permanently and immediately 
available. 
 
Q105.2 (RESERVED) (FIRE 013).  
 



Page | 16 
 

Q105.3 Single parcel fire protection water supply. (FIRE 014). For development of structures 
totaling less than three thousand (3,000) square feet on a single parcel, the minimum fire 
protection water supply shall be four thousand nine hundred (4,900) gallons. For development of 
structures totaling three thousand (3,000) square feet or more on a single parcel, the minimum 
fire protection water supply shall be nine thousand eight hundred (9,800) gallons. For 
development of structures totaling more than ten thousand (10,000) square feet on a single 
parcel, the reviewing authority may require additional fire protection water supply. Other water 
supply alternatives, including ISO Rural Class 8 mobile water systems, may be permitted by the 
fire authority to provide for the same practical effect. The quantity of water required by this 
condition shall be in addition to the domestic demand and shall be permanently and immediately 
available.  
 
Q105.4 Fire hydrants and valves. (FIRE 015). A fire hydrant or fire valve is required. The 
hydrant or fire valve shall be eighteen (18) inches above grade, eight feet from flammable 
vegetation, no closer than four feet nor further than twelve (12) feet from a roadway, and in a 
location where fire apparatus using it will not block the roadway. The hydrant serving any 
building shall be not less than fifty (50) feet and not more than one thousand (1,000) feet by road 
from the building it is to serve. Minimum hydrant standards shall include a brass head and valve 
with at least one 2 1/2-inch National Hose outlet supplied by a minimum four inch main and 
riser. More restrictive hydrant requirements may be applied by the Reviewing Authority. Each 
hydrant/valve shall be identified with a reflectorized blue marker, with minimum dimensions of 
three inches, located on the driveway address sign, non-combustible post or fire hydrant riser. If 
used, the post shall be within three feet of the hydrant/valve, with the blue marker not less than 
three feet or greater than five feet above the ground, visible from the driveway. On paved roads 
or driveways, reflectorized blue markers shall be permitted to be installed in accordance with the 
State Fire Marshal's Guidelines for Fire Hydrant Markings Along State Highways and Freeways, 
May 1988.  
 
SECTION Q106 SETBACKS      
 
Q106.1 Setbacks. (FIRE 016). Except as permitted by the fire code official, all parcels one acre 
and larger shall provide a minimum thirty (30) foot setback for new buildings and accessory 
buildings from all property lines and/or the center of the road. For parcels less than one-acre, 
alternate fuel modification standards or other requirements may be imposed by the Fire Code 
Official to provide the same practical effect.  
 
SECTION Q107 VEGETATION AND DEBRIS DISPOSAL  
 
Q107.1 Disposition of vegetation and debris fuels. (FIRE 017). Disposal, including chipping, 
burying, or removal to a landfill site approved by the local jurisdiction, of vegetation and debris 
caused by site development and construction, road and driveway construction, and fuel 
modification shall be completed prior to final clearance of the related permit.  
 
SECTION Q108 GREENBELTS  
 



Page | 17 
 

Q108.1 Greenbelts. (FIRE 018). Subdivisions and other developments, which propose 
greenbelts as a part of the development plan, shall locate said greenbelts strategically as a 
separation between wild land fuels and structures. The locations shall be approved by the Fire 
Code Official.   
 
SECTION Q109 DEFENSIBLE SPACE  
 
Q109.1 Standard defensible space requirements. (FIRE 019). Defensible space requirements 
shall meet Section 4291 of the Public Resources Code or the Code, whichever is more restrictive.  
Additional or alternate fire protection approved by the Fire Code Official may be required to 
provide reasonable fire safety. Environmentally sensitive areas may require alternative fire 
protection, to be determined by the Fire Code Official and other jurisdictional authorities.  
 
Q109.2 (RESERVED) (FIRE 020).  
 
SECTION Q110 FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS  
 
Q110.1 Residential fire sprinkler systems (Standard). (FIRE 021). The building(s) and 
attached structure(s) shall be fully protected with automatic fire sprinkler system(s). Installation 
shall be in accordance with the applicable NFPA standard. A minimum of four sets of plans for 
fire sprinkler systems must be submitted by a California licensed C-16 contractor and approved 
prior to installation. This requirement is not intended to delay issuance of a building permit. A 
rough sprinkler inspection must be scheduled by the installing contractor and completed prior to 
requesting a framing inspection.  
 
Q110.2 (RESERVED) (FIRE 022).  
 
Q110.3 (RESERVED) (FIRE 023).  
 
Q110.4 Residential fire alarm systems. (FIRE 024). The residence shall be fully protected with 
an approved household fire warning system as defined by NFPA 72. Plans and specifications for 
the household fire warning system shall be submitted by a California licensed C-10 contractor 
and approved prior to installation. Household fire warning systems installed in lieu of single-
station smoke alarms required by the California Residential Code shall meet the requirements of 
the California Residential Code.  
 
Q110.5 (RESERVED) (FIRE 025).  
 
APPENDIX R: ROOFS  
 
SECTION R101 GENERAL  
 
R101.1 Scope. Applications for the construction or remodel of any buildings shall be subject to 
the roofing conditions of this Appendix when conditioned by the Fire Code Official.  
 



Page | 18 
 

R101.2 Conflicting Sections. Where provisions in this Appendix conflict with other sections of 
this Code or other appendices, the provisions of this Appendix shall prevail unless otherwise 
directed by the Fire Code Official.  
 
SECTION R102 NEW BUILDINGS  
 
R102.1 General. (FIRE 026). Roofing requirements for all new buildings shall be a minimum 
Class “B” roof assembly as defined by the International Building Code.  
EXCEPTION: Greenhouses shall be exempt from the requirements of this Section.  
 
R102.2 Very High Hazard Severity Zones. (FIRE 027). Roofing requirements for all new 
buildings in Very High Hazard Severity Zones shall be a minimum Class “A” roof assembly as 
defined by the International Building Code.  
 
R102.3 Reserved SBCO EXLUDED 
 
SECTION R103 EXISTING BUILDINGS  
 
R103.1 General. (FIRE 026). Roofing requirements for existing buildings when fifty percent 
(50%) or more of the roof area is reroofed within a one-year period after the issuance of a 
building permit shall be a minimum Class “B” roof assembly as defined by the California 
Building Code. Where there is no permit issued, this section is applicable to buildings 
constructed after the effective date of this code and to buildings where fifty percent (50%) or 
more of the roof area is reroofed within a one-year period after commencing construction.  
 
R103.2 Very High Hazard Severity Zone. (FIRE 027). Roofing requirements for existing 
buildings within a very high hazard severity zone when fifty percent (50%) or more of the roof 
area is reroofed within a one-year period after the issuance of a building permit shall be a 
minimum Class “A” roof assembly as defined by the International Building Code. Where there is 
no permit issued, this Section is applicable to such buildings constructed after the effective date 
of this code and to buildings where fifty percent (50%) or more of the roof area is reroofed 
within a one-year period after commencing construction.  
 
R103.3 RESERVED SBCO EXCLUDED 
 
SECTION R104 ADDITIONS TO EXISTING BUILDINGS  
 
R104.1 General. The requirements of this Appendix shall apply to all additions to existing 
buildings, except that only the new portions of the roof shall be required to meet the 
requirements of this Appendix.”   
  

4.  Section 5-1-150 Repealed. Section 5-1-150 “Automatic fire extinguishing systems” of 
Chapter 5.1 of Title 5 “Public Health, Safety and Welfare” is hereby repealed in its entirety and 
not replaced. 

 



Page | 19 
 

5.  Section 5-1-160 Repealed. Section 5-1-160 “General provisions for safety” of Chapter 
5.1 of Title 5 “Public Health, Safety and Welfare” is hereby repealed in its entirety and not 
replaced. 

 
6.  Section 5-1-170 Repealed. Section 5-1-170 “Special regulations” of Chapter 5.1 of 

Title 5 “Public Health, Safety and Welfare” is hereby repealed in its entirety and not replaced. 
 

 7.  Findings Adopted:  The City Council hereby adopts the factual findings set forth in 
Section 5-1-100 of Chapter 5-1 of the San Juan Bautista Municipal Code, relating to the 
amendments made to the California Fire Code 
 
 8.  Savings Clause:  Repeal of any provision of the San Juan Bautista Municipal Code or 
any other city ordinance herein will not affect any penalty, forfeiture, or liability incurred before, 
or preclude prosecution and imposition of penalties for any violation occurring before, this 
Ordinance’s effective date.  Any such repealed part will remain in full force and effect for 
sustaining action or prosecuting violations occurring before the effective date of this Ordinance. 

 
9.  Severability:   If any provision, section, paragraph, sentence or word of this 

Ordinance, or the application thereof to any person, property or circumstance is rendered or 
declared invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions, sections, 
paragraphs, sentences or words of this ordinance, and their application to other persons, property 
or circumstances, shall not be affected thereby and shall remain in full force and effect and, to 
that end, the provisions of this Ordinance are severable. 

  
10.  Interpretation:  The provisions of this ordinance are enacted for the public health, 

safety and welfare and are to be liberally construed to obtain the beneficial purposes thereof. In 
the event of any conflict between this ordinance and any law, rule or regulation of the State of 
California, that requirement which established the higher standard of safety shall govern.  Failure 
to comply with such standard of safety shall be a violation of the Municipal Code.  Any 
provision of the Municipal Code or appendices thereto inconsistent with the provisions of this 
ordinance, to the extent of such inconsistency and no further, is hereby repealed or modified to 
the extent necessary to affect the provisions of this ordinance.  

 
11.  Filing of Findings:  The City Clerk is hereby directed to file a copy of this ordinance 

with the California Building Standards Commission of the State of California. 
 
12.  Notice: The City Council hereby determines that the form of the Notice of the public 

hearing held on April 18, 2023, which was published on March 31, 2023, and April 7, 2023, is 
sufficient to give notice to interested persons of the purpose of the ordinance and the subject matter 
thereof. 



Page | 20 
 

 
13.  Liability: The provisions of this ordinance shall not be construed as imposing upon 

the City of San Juan Bautista any liability or responsibility for damage to persons or property 
resulting from defective work, nor shall the City of San Juan Bautista, or any official, employee 
or agent thereof, be held as assuming any such liability or responsibility by reason of the review 
or inspection authorized by the provisions of this ordinance or of any permits or certificates 
issued under this ordinance. 

 
14.  Effective Date:  This ordinance shall take effect on May 19, 2023. 

 
15.  Posting of Ordinance.   Within fifteen (15) days after the passage of this ordinance, 

the City Clerk shall cause it to be posted in three (3) public places designated by resolution of the 
City Council. 
 

The forgoing ordinance was introduced at a Regular meeting of the City Council of the 
City of San Juan Bautista duly held on March 21, 2023, and was adopted at a regular meeting of 
the City Council duly held on April 18, 2023, by the following votes: 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the San Juan Bautista City Council on April 18, 2023, by 

the following vote:  
 
AYES:    
 
NOES:    
 
ABSENT:    
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
        APPROVED:  
         
 
        _______________________ 

         Leslie Q. Jordan, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Elizabeth Soto, Deputy City Clerk 
 



Page | 21 
 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
 
 
___________________________ 
Robert W. Rathie, City Attorney 



Page | 1 
 

EXHIBIT B 
Public Notice  
City of San Juan Bautista 
City Council 
 

Notice of Public Hearings 
 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Council of the City of San Juan Bautista 
will hold two separate public hearings concerning the proposed adoption of two 
ordinances, one of which would amend Chapter 5-1 “California Fire Code – 2022 
Edition” of the San Juan Bautista Municipal Code to adopt 2022 edition of the California 
Fire Code, including local amendments. The other of which would amend sections 10-1-
110 “Code adoption by reference” of Chapter 10-1 “Buildings” of Title 10 “Buildings 
and Subdivisions” of the City of San Juan Bautista Municipal Code to adopt by reference 
certain of the parts of California Code of Regulations Title 24, the California Building 
Standards Code 2022 Edition including:  Part 1 the California Administrative Code, Part  
2 the California Building Code (Vols. 1 & 2), Part 2.5 the California Residential Code, 
Part 3 the California Electrical Code, Part 4 the California Mechanical Code, Part 5 the 
California Plumbing  Code, Part 6 the California Energy Code, Part 8 the California 
Historical Building Code, Part 10  the California Existing Building Code, Part 11 the 
California Green Building Standards Code (CALGreen), and Part 12 the California 
Reference Standard Code; and repealing section 10-1-115, with both ordinances to go 
into effect on May 19, 2023. 
 
Date of Hearings: Tuesday April 18, 2023 
 
Time of Hearings:  6:00 PM or as soon thereafter as possible 
 
Location of Hearings: 
                                      City Council Chambers 
                                       311 2nd Street 
                                       San Juan Bautista, CA 95045 
 
 
Purpose of the Proposed Ordinances:  The State of California Health and Safety Code 
requires cities to adopt the most recent editions of the State Building Standards Code to 
establish uniform standards including for the fire and life safety systems.  State law also 
allows cities to make changes to the codes that are reasonably necessary because of local 
climatic, geological or topographical conditions.  The California Health & Safety Code 
require that the latest editions of the California Building Standards Codes apply to local 
construction 180 days after publication. 
 
The first ordinance would amend Chapter 5-1 of the Municipal Code, California Fire 
Code to adopt 2022 editions of the California Fire Code by adopting and amending the 



Page | 2 
 

2022 California Fire Code, with certain exceptions, modifications, and additions required 
by local climactic, geological or topographical conditions. 
 
The second  ordinance would amend sections 10-1-110 “Code adoption by reference” of 
Chapter 10-1 “Buildings” of Title 10 “Buildings and Subdivisions” of the City of San 
Juan Bautista Municipal Code to adopt by reference certain of the parts of California 
Code of Regulations Title 24, the California Building Standards Code 2022 Edition 
including:  Part 1 the California Administrative Code,  Part  2 the California Building 
Code (Vols. 1 & 2), Part 2.5 the California Residential Code, Part 3 the California 
Electrical Code, Part 4 the California Mechanical Code, Part 5 the California Plumbing  
Code, Part 6 the California Energy Code, Part 8 the California Historical Building Code, 
Part 10 the California Existing Building Code, Part 11 the California Green Building 
Standards Code (CALGreen), and Part 12 the California Reference Standard Code and 
related international codes; and repeal section 10-1-115, 
 
The ordinances were introduced on March 21, 2023, and will both be considered for 
adoption on April 18, 2023 to both be in full force and effect on May 19, 2023. 
 
Invitation to be Heard:  All interested persons are invited to the public hearing to be 
heard in favor or in opposition to the proposed subject.  In addition, written comments 
may be submitted to the Community Development Department prior to the hearing.   If 
you challenge the action taken on this proposal in court, you may be limited to raising 
only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this 
Notice, or written correspondence delivered to the City of San Juan Bautista prior to or at 
the public hearing.  
 
Copies of the 2022 edition of the California Fire Code, as well as well copies of the 2022 
editions of the California Administrative Code, the California Building Code (Vols. 1 & 
2), the California Residential Code, the California Electrical Code, the California 
Mechanical Code, the California Plumbing  Code, the California Energy Code; the 
California Historical Building Code, the California Existing Building Code, the 
California Green Building Standards Code (CALGreen), the California Reference 
Standard Code, as is the full text of both the ordinances proposed for adoption, are on file 
at the office of the City Clerk and available for public inspection and review at the 
Community Development Department, City Hall, 311 2nd Street, San Juan Bautista, CA 
95045. For further information related to this subject you may contact Mr. Don Reynolds, 
City Manager, City of San Juan Bautista,  (831) 623-4661.  
 
 
Don Reynolds 
City Manger 
 
Publish Date:  March 31 & April 7, 2023 



Item #7.C 
City Council Meeting 

March 21, 2023 

Page | 1 
 

CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA 
CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 
 

 
DATE:  MARCH 21, 2023 
 
DEPARTMENT: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
 
BY: MINERVA ARREDONDO, BUILDING OFFICIAL 
 
FROM:  BRIAN FOUCHT, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 
 
TITLE: Ordinance No 2023-XX Amending Sections 10-1-110 “Code Adoption 

by Reference” of Chapter 10-1 “Buildings” of Title 10 “Buildings and 
Subdivisions” of the City of San Juan Bautista Municipal Code to 
Adopt by Reference Certain of the Parts of California Code of 
Regulations Title 24, the California Building Standards Code 2022 
Edition including: Part 1 the California Administrative Code,  Part  2 
the California Building Code (Vols. 1 & 2), Part 2.5 the California 
Residential Code, Part 3 the California Electrical Code,  Part 4 the 
California Mechanical Code, Part 5 the California Plumbing  Code, 
Part 6 the California Energy Code, Part 8 the California Historical 
Building Code, Part 10  the California Existing Building Code, Part 11 
the California Green Building Standards Code (CALGreen), and Part 
12 the California Reference Standard Code; repealing section 10-1-115; 
and setting a public hearing for Tuesday, April 18, 2023. 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   

Staff recommends that the City Council read by title only, waive full and further Reading, and 
introduce an Ordinance of the City Council of the City of San Juan Bautista amending Sections 
10-1-110 of the San Juan Bautista Municipal Code and adopting by reference certain parts of the 
2022 Edition of the California Building Standards Codes, Title 24 of the California Code of 
Regulations including: Part 1 the California Administrative Code, Part  2 the California Building 
Code (Vols. 1 & 2), Part 2.5 the California Residential Code, Part 3 the California Electrical Code, 
Part 4 the California Mechanical Code, Part 5 the California Plumbing  Code, Part 6 the California 
Energy Code, Part 8 the California Historical Building Code, Part 10  the California Existing 
Building Code, Part 11 the California Green Building Standards Code (CALGreen), and Part 12 
the California Reference Standard Code; repealing Section 10-1-115; and setting and directing 
publication of notice for a public hearing on the matter for Tuesday, April 18, 2023  

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   

The California Building Standards – comprising of Codes regulating fire, electrical, plumbing, and 
mechanical and other activities and conditions – are revised on a three-year cycle. In January 2022, 
the State’s California Building Standards Commission adopted and approved the 2022 Edition of 



Item #7.C 
City Council Meeting 

March 21, 2023 

Page | 2 
 

the Building Standards Codes, also known as the 2022 Edition of the California Codes.  These 
Codes were subsequently published on July 1, 2022 and  became effective January 1, 2023, 
whether or not they were formally adopted by a local jurisdiction before that date. Accordingly, 
all local jurisdictions in California were mandated to begin enforcement of these new codes and 
standards on and after January 1, 2023. 

Municipal Code Section 10-1-115 entitled “UBC Chapter 70 appendix adopted” should be 
repealed.  The Uniform Building Code (UBC), published by International Conference of Building 
Officials (ICBO), was replaced in 2000 by the International Building Codes promulgated by the 
International Code Council (ICC).  The ICC was the result of a merger of three predecessor 
organizations which published three different building codes, those being the ICBO, the Building 
Officials and Code Administrators (BOCA), and the Southern Building Code Congress 
International (SBCCI).  The ICC publishes the International Building Code (IBC) which includes 
the various codes on which the California Building Standards Commission has modeled the 
California Building Codes. 

DISCUSSION:   

The ICC model codes are updated every three years.  This allows for the codes to improve and 
adjust to the newest materials, methods of construction and technological advances in the industry. 
The 2022 California Building Standards Code contains twelve parts that incorporate public health, 
life safety and general welfare standards used in the design and construction of buildings in 
California.   

These parts incorporate the latest national standards from the ICC into the California 
Administrative, Building, Residential, Electrical, Mechanical, Plumbing, Energy, Historical 
Building, Fire, Existing Building, Green Building Standards. and Reference Standards Codes. 

 Local jurisdictions may only modify the California Building Codes to make them more stringent 
because of the unique local climatic, geological, or topographical conditions which modifications 
must be supported by findings. All local modifications must be filed with the California Building 
Standards Commission and will apply to the City of San Juan Bautista building permit applications 
received on and after the effective date of the Ordinance.  The proposed Ordinance amends Section 
10-1-110 by the adoption of the updated California Codes with the exception of the 2022 California 
Fire Code as modified which is proposed for separate adoption. 

It is recommended that the City Council adopt the Ordinance attached as Exhibit A amending the 
Municipal Code because having the Municipal Code contain references to the adoption of the latest 
California Codes is more convenient and accurate for the public to access and research as otherwise 
the City of San Juan Bautista Municipal Code would not cite the correct building standards that 
must apply to current construction and development projects. This discrepancy between the local 
ordinance and the state law can create confusion. Furthermore, if the City is required to bring a 
code enforcement action, it is necessary that the complaint provides reference local ordinance 
provisions which cite the correct regulations. Staff recommends that the City Council adopt an 
ordinance of the City Council of the City of San Juan Bautista Amending Chapter 10-1-110 and 
repealing 10-1-115 and direct that notice be given in the form attached as Exhibit B for a public 
hearing on the adoption of the ordinance to be held at 6:00 p.m. or as soon thereafter as the matter 
may be heard on Tuesday, April 18, 2023.  



Item #7.C 
City Council Meeting 

March 21, 2023 

Page | 3 
 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:    

Cost of Purchasing the 2022 Codes approx. $1,500.00. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

Exhibit A – the proposed Ordinance 

Exhibit B – Notice of Public Hearings  



Page | 1 
 

EXHIBIT A 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023 - XX 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA AMENDING SECTIONS 
10-1-110 “CODE ADOPTION BY REFERENCE” OF CHAPTER 10-1 “BUILDINGS” OF 

TITLE 10 “BUILDINGS AND SUBDIVISIONS” OF THE CITY OF SAN JUAN 
BAUTISTA MUNICIPAL CODE TO ADOPT BY REFERENCE CERTAIN OF THE 

PARTS OF CALIFORNIA CODE OF REGULATIONS TITLE 24, THE CALIFORNIA 
BUILDING STANDARDS CODE 2022 EDITION, INCLUDING:  PART 1 THE 

CALIFORNIA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE,  PART  2 THE CALIFORNIA BUILDING 
CODE (VOLS. 1 & 2), PART 2.5 THE CALIFORNIA RESIDENTIAL CODE, PART 3 

THE CALIFORNIA ELECTRICAL CODE,  PART 4 THE CALIFORNIA 
MECHANICAL CODE, PART 5 THE CALIFORNIA PLUMBING  CODE, PART 6 THE 

CALIFORNIA ENERGY CODE, PART 8 THE CALIFORNIA HISTORICAL 
BUILDING CODE, PART 10  THE CALIFORNIA EXISTING BUILDING CODE, PART 
11 THE CALIFORNIA GREEN BUILDING STANDARDS CODE (CALGREEN), AND 

PART 12 THE CALIFORNIA REFERENCE STANDARD CODE;  
AND REPEALING SECTION 10-1-115. 

 

 WHEREAS, the California Building Standards Commission adopted the 2022 Edition of 
the California Building Codes in January 2022; and 

 WHEREAS, the California Building Standards Commission published the 2022 Edition 
of the California Building Codes on July 1, 2022; and  

 WHEREAS, the California Health and Safety Code requires that the latest edition of the 
California Building Standards Codes apply to local jurisdictions 180 days after their publication; 
and 

 WHEREAS, the Uniform Building Code (“UBC”) is no longer in publication and the 
last publication date was 1997. 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of San 
Juan Bautista does hereby ordain as follows: 

Section 1.  Section 10-1-110 Amended, Section 10-1-110 “Codes adopted by reference” of 
Chapter 10-1 “Buildings” of Title 10 “Buildings and Subdivisions” is hereby amended and 
replaced in its entirety to read as follows:    

“10-1-110 Codes adopted by reference. 

(A) The following codes in their entirety, which are on file and available for public inspection 
at City Hall, are adopted by reference as fully as it is set for herein in full.  The 2022 
Edition of the California Building Standards, Title 24 of the California Code of 
Regulations, consisting of the following parts. 



Page | 2 
 

 
Part 1   California Administrative Code 
Part 2   California Building Code (Vols. 1 & 2)  
Part 2.5 California Residential Code 
Part 3   California Electrical Code 
Part 4   California Mechanical Code  
Part 5   California Plumbing Code 
Part 6   California Energy Code 
Part 8   California Historical Building Code 
Part 10  California Existing Building Code 
Part 11  California Green Building Standards Code 
Part 12  California Reference Standard Code 

 
(B) Engineering Design Standards, Standard Specifications, Standard Plans. The City of 

Hollister Engineering Design Standards, Standard Specifications, and Standard Plans, 
adopted June 1992, as amended from time to time, shall be the latest and current edition 
of the City of San Juan Bautista Engineering Design Standards, Standard Specifications, 
and Standard Plans.” 

Section 2.    Section 10-1-115 Repealed.  Section 10-1-115 “UBC Chapter 70 appendix 
adopted” of Chapter 10-1 “Buildings” of Title 10 “Buildings and Subdivisions” is hereby 
repealed in its entirety and not replaced.     

Section 3.   Savings Clause:  Repeal of any provision of the San Juan Bautista Municipal 
Code or any other city ordinance herein will not affect any penalty, forfeiture, or liability 
incurred before, or preclude prosecution and imposition of penalties for any violation occurring 
before, this Ordinance’s effective date.  Any such repealed part will remain in full force and 
effect for sustaining action or prosecuting violations occurring before the effective date of this 
Ordinance. 

Section 4. Severability.  The City Council declares that, should any provision, section, 
paragraph, sentence, or word of this ordinance be rendered or declared invalid by any final court 
action in a court of competent jurisdiction or by reason of any preemptive legislation, the 
remaining provisions, sections, paragraphs, sentences, or words of this ordinance as hereby shall 
remain in full force and effect. 

Section 5. Interpretation:  The provisions of this ordinance are enacted for the public health, 
safety and welfare and are to be liberally construed to obtain the beneficial purposes thereof. In 
the event of any conflict between this ordinance and any law, rule or regulation of the State of 
California, that requirement which established the higher standard of safety shall govern.  Failure 
to comply with such standard of safety shall be a violation of the Municipal Code. Any provision 
of the Municipal Code or appendices thereto inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance, 
to the extent of such inconsistency and no further, is hereby repealed or modified to the extent 
necessary to affect the provisions of this ordinance.  



Page | 3 
 

Section 6. Notice: The City Council hereby determines that the form of the Notice of the 
public hearing to be held on April 18, 2023, which is to be published on March 31, 2023, and April 
7, 2023, is sufficient to give notice to interested persons of the purpose of the ordinance and the 
subject matter thereof. 
 
Section 7. Liability:  The provisions of this ordinance shall not be construed as imposing 
upon the City of San Juan Bautista any liability or responsibility for damage to persons or 
property resulting from defective work, nor shall the City of San Juan Bautista, or any official, 
employee or agent thereof, be held as assuming any such liability or responsibility by reason of 
the review or inspection authorized by the provisions of this ordinance or of any permits or 
certificates issued under this ordinance. 

Section 8. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after final 
passage by the City Council. 

Section 9. Posting of Ordinance: Within fifteen (15) days after the passage of this ordinance, 
the City Clerk shall cause it to be posted in three (3) public places designated by resolution of the 
City Council. 

The forgoing ordinance was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the 
City of San Juan Bautista duly held on March 21, 2023, and was adopted at a regular meeting of 
the City Council duly held on April 18, 2023, by the following votes: 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of San Juan Bautista on the 
18th day of April 2022, by the following vote:  

 

AYES:    

NOES:    

ABSENT:    

ABSTAIN:  

        APPROVED:   

 

        ________________________ 
        Leslie Q. Jordan, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 

 
___________________________ 
Elizabeth Soto, Deputy City Clerk 



Page | 4 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
 
 
___________________________ 
Robert W. Rathie, City Attorney 
 



EXHIBIT B 
Public Notice  
City of San Juan Bautista 
City Council 
 

Notice of Public Hearings 
 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Council of the City of San Juan Bautista 
will hold two separate public hearings concerning the proposed adoption of two 
ordinances, one of which would amend Chapter 5-1 “California Fire Code – 2022 
Edition” of the San Juan Bautista Municipal Code to adopt 2022 edition of the California 
Fire Code, including local amendments. The other of which would amend sections 10-1-
110 “Code adoption by reference” of Chapter 10-1 “Buildings” of Title 10 “Buildings 
and Subdivisions” of the City of San Juan Bautista Municipal Code to adopt by reference 
certain of the parts of California Code of Regulations Title 24, the California Building 
Standards Code 2022 Edition including:  Part 1 the California Administrative Code, Part  
2 the California Building Code (Vols. 1 & 2), Part 2.5 the California Residential Code, 
Part 3 the California Electrical Code, Part 4 the California Mechanical Code, Part 5 the 
California Plumbing  Code, Part 6 the California Energy Code, Part 8 the California 
Historical Building Code, Part 10  the California Existing Building Code, Part 11 the 
California Green Building Standards Code (CALGreen), and Part 12 the California 
Reference Standard Code; and repealing section 10-1-115, with both ordinances to go 
into effect on May 19, 2023. 
 
Date of Hearings: Tuesday April 18, 2023 
 
Time of Hearings:  6:00 PM or as soon thereafter as possible 
 
Location of Hearings: 
                                      City Council Chambers 
                                       311 2nd Street 
                                       San Juan Bautista, CA 95045 
 
 
Purpose of the Proposed Ordinances:  The State of California Health and Safety Code 
requires cities to adopt the most recent editions of the State Building Standards Code to 
establish uniform standards including for the fire and life safety systems.  State law also 
allows cities to make changes to the codes that are reasonably necessary because of local 
climatic, geological or topographical conditions.  The California Health & Safety Code 
require that the latest editions of the California Building Standards Codes apply to local 
construction 180 days after publication. 
 
The first ordinance would amend Chapter 5-1 of the Municipal Code, California Fire 
Code to adopt 2022 editions of the California Fire Code by adopting and amending the 



2022 California Fire Code, with certain exceptions, modifications, and additions required 
by local climactic, geological or topographical conditions. 
 
The second  ordinance would amend sections 10-1-110 “Code adoption by reference” of 
Chapter 10-1 “Buildings” of Title 10 “Buildings and Subdivisions” of the City of San 
Juan Bautista Municipal Code to adopt by reference certain of the parts of California 
Code of Regulations Title 24, the California Building Standards Code 2022 Edition 
including:  Part 1 the California Administrative Code,  Part  2 the California Building 
Code (Vols. 1 & 2), Part 2.5 the California Residential Code, Part 3 the California 
Electrical Code, Part 4 the California Mechanical Code, Part 5 the California Plumbing  
Code, Part 6 the California Energy Code, Part 8 the California Historical Building Code, 
Part 10 the California Existing Building Code, Part 11 the California Green Building 
Standards Code (CALGreen), and Part 12 the California Reference Standard Code and 
related international codes; and repeal section 10-1-115, 
 
The ordinances were introduced on March 21, 2023, and will both be considered for 
adoption on April 18, 2023 to both be in full force and effect on May 19, 2023. 
 
Invitation to be Heard:  All interested persons are invited to the public hearing to be 
heard in favor or in opposition to the proposed subject.  In addition, written comments 
may be submitted to the Community Development Department prior to the hearing.   If 
you challenge the action taken on this proposal in court, you may be limited to raising 
only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this 
Notice, or written correspondence delivered to the City of San Juan Bautista prior to or at 
the public hearing.  
 
Copies of the 2022 edition of the California Fire Code, as well as well copies of the 2022 
editions of the California Administrative Code, the California Building Code (Vols. 1 & 
2), the California Residential Code, the California Electrical Code, the California 
Mechanical Code, the California Plumbing  Code, the California Energy Code; the 
California Historical Building Code, the California Existing Building Code, the 
California Green Building Standards Code (CALGreen), the California Reference 
Standard Code, as is the full text of both the ordinances proposed for adoption, are on file 
at the office of the City Clerk and available for public inspection and review at the 
Community Development Department, City Hall, 311 2nd Street, San Juan Bautista, CA 
95045. For further information related to this subject you may contact Mr. Don Reynolds, 
City Manager, City of San Juan Bautista,  (831) 623-4661.  
 
 
Don Reynolds 
City Manger 
 
Publish Date:  March 31 & April 7, 2023 











Item # 8.B 
City Council Meeting 

March 21, 2023 
 

TREASURER’S REPORT 

For the Seven-Month Period Ended January 31, 2023  

(58% of fiscal year) 

General Fund ~ 

General revenues are running at 55% for the year to date. Correspondingly, general fund 
expenditures are at 44% for the year to date. The net effect is a positive change in general fund 
balance of $431k.   

 

Water Enterprise Fund ~ 

The water enterprise fund revenues are running at 60% for the year to date, and expenses are at 
59%. The net effect is a positive change in the water enterprise fund of $256k.  

 

Sewer Enterprise Fund ~ 

The sewer enterprise fund revenues are running at 74% for the year to date, and expenses are at 
63%. The net effect is a positive change in the sewer enterprise fund of $298k. 



City of San Juan Batista
Check/Voucher Register - Check Register  Current Month

From 1/1/2023 Through 1/31/2023

1110 - Operating 
Acct. 1948

Effective Date Check Number Vendor Name
Matching Document 
Date Check Amount

1/5/2023 216348 Association of California Water Agencies 1/1/2023 8,555.00
1/5/2023 216349 Charter Communications 1/1/2023 572.13
1/5/2023 216350 Granicus 1/1/2023 2,500.00
1/5/2023 216351 Monterey Bay Economic Partnership 1/1/2023 3,000.00
1/5/2023 216352 MuniBilling 1/1/2023 449.31
1/5/2023 216353 State Water Resources Control Board 1/1/2023 7,939.68

1/13/2023 216354 4Leaf, Inc. 1/1/2023 1,546.44
1/13/2023 216355 ACWA Health Benefits Authority 1/1/2023 20,547.72
1/13/2023 216356 Alliant Insurance Services 1/1/2023 910.00
1/13/2023 216357 att.com 1/1/2023 72.23
1/13/2023 216358 AVAYA 1/5/2023 250.66
1/13/2023 216359 Brigantino Irrigation, Inc. 1/1/2023 88.62
1/13/2023 216360 City of Hollister. 1/1/2023 59,337.67
1/13/2023 216361 City of Pacific Grove 1/1/2023 53.40
1/13/2023 216362 Clark Pest Control 1/10/2023 102.00
1/13/2023 216363 Claudia P. Alvarado 1/11/2023 500.00
1/13/2023 216364 DXP Enterprises Inc. 1/1/2023 6,942.92
1/13/2023 216365 Ecology Action of Santa Cruz 1/10/2023 500.00
1/13/2023 216366 EMC Planning Group Inc. 1/1/2023 20,592.19
1/13/2023 216367 Hollister Auto Parts, Inc. 1/1/2023 130.47
1/13/2023 216368 J.V. Orta's Rent A Fence 1/27/2023 225.00
1/13/2023 216369 Civic Well 1/1/2023 28,636.54
1/13/2023 216370 Monterey Bay Analytical Services 1/1/2023 2,681.00
1/13/2023 216371 Oppenheimer Investigations Group LLP 1/1/2023 126.00
1/13/2023 216372 Paul Champion 1/1/2023 490.29
1/13/2023 216373 Pet Waste Co 1/1/2023 246.33
1/13/2023 216374 Staples 1/1/2023 477.90
1/13/2023 216375 True Value Hardware 1/1/2023 93.88
1/13/2023 216376 Wallace Group 1/1/2023 7,601.28
1/13/2023 216377 Wendy L. Cumming, CPA 1/1/2023 6,352.50
1/13/2023 216378 Wright Bros. Industrial Supply 1/1/2023 64.69
1/24/2023 216379 Kysment Security & Patrol Inc 1/1/2023 11,351.00
1/25/2023 216380 at&t 1/7/2023 202.92
1/25/2023 216381 Cypress Water Services 1/1/2023 11,175.00
1/25/2023 216382 Department of Conservation 1/1/2023 80.61
1/25/2023 216383 EMC Planning Group Inc. 1/1/2023 7,942.19
1/25/2023 216384 G&M Auto, Inc. 1/1/2023 277.00
1/25/2023 216385 J.C.J. Electric Corp. 1/1/2023 988.85
1/25/2023 216386 Kysment Security & Patrol Inc 1/1/2023 11,651.00
1/25/2023 216387 MNS Engineers, Inc. 1/1/2023 52,279.25
1/25/2023 216388 Monterey Bay Analytical Services 1/4/2023 1,214.00
1/25/2023 216389 New SV Media 1/13/2023 518.20
1/25/2023 216390 Ready Refresh 1/12/2023 183.95
1/25/2023 216391 Ridgeline Municipal Strategies, LLC 1/1/2023 4,720.00

Page:  1



City of San Juan Batista
Check/Voucher Register - Check Register  Current Month

From 1/1/2023 Through 1/31/2023

1/25/2023 216392 Rossi Bros Tire & Auto 1/18/2023 30.00
1/25/2023 216393 Rx-Tek 1/11/2023 2,037.95
1/25/2023 216394 San Benito County Elections 1/1/2023 16,006.06
1/25/2023 216395 Schaaf & Wheeler 1/1/2023 11,650.85
1/25/2023 216396 Software Simplified 1/5/2023 5,800.00
1/25/2023 216397 Sprint 1/7/2023 444.64
1/25/2023 216398 Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 1/1/2023 59,658.55
1/25/2023 216399 State Water Resources Control Board 1/17/2023 34,800.00
1/25/2023 216400 TL Engineering 1/1/2023 4,587.00
1/25/2023 216401 Valero Wex Bank 1/1/2023 1,064.23

Page:  2



City of San Juan Batista
Check/Voucher Register - Check Register  Current Month

From 1/1/2023 Through 1/31/2023

1110 - Operating 
Acct. 1948

Effective Date Check Number Vendor Name
Matching Document 
Date Check Amount

1/25/2023 216402 Wallace Group 1/1/2023 1,858.50
1/26/2023 216403 All Clear Water Services 1/1/2023 4,100.00
1/26/2023 216404 Green Line 1/1/2023 1,130.00
1/31/2023 216405 AFLAC 1/31/2023 934.44
1/31/2023 216406 Bryant L. Jolley 1/3/2023 27,000.00
1/31/2023 216407 CALNET 1/19/2023 307.24
1/31/2023 216408 Division of the State Architect 1/11/2023 170.80
1/31/2023 216409 Civic Well 1/1/2023 1,411.00
1/31/2023 216410 Lonnie Davis 1/25/2023 162.56
1/31/2023 216411 Monterey Bay Analytical Services 1/10/2023 1,404.00
1/31/2023 216412 P G & E 1/1/2023 14,235.26
1/31/2023 216413 Regional Government Services 1/1/2023 1,113.84
1/31/2023 216414 San Benito County Assessor 1/9/2023 2,416.00
1/31/2023 216415 San Benito County Environmental Health 1/10/2023 2,845.00
1/31/2023 216416 Smith & Enright Landscaping 1/20/2023 3,915.00
1/31/2023 216417 Toro Petroleum Corp. 1/1/2023 384.75
1/31/2023 216418 US Bank 1/1/2023 7,046.93
1/31/2023 216419 US Bank Equipment Finance 2/7/2023 249.61
1/31/2023 216420 Wellington & Rathie 1/1/2023 1,120.00
1/31/2023 216421 4Leaf, Inc. 1/1/2023 3,967.25
1/31/2023 216422 Alejandro Romero 2/7/2023 700.00
1/31/2023 216423 All Clear Water Services 1/31/2023 4,100.00
1/31/2023 216424 Allison Newman 1/25/2023 230.00
1/31/2023 216425 att.com 2/28/2023 72.23
1/31/2023 216426 AVAYA 2/3/2023 250.66
1/31/2023 216427 Baker Supplies and Repairs 1/18/2023 378.01
1/31/2023 216428 Brigantino Irrigation, Inc. 1/24/2023 91.89
1/31/2023 216429 Ca Association Code Enforcement Officers 2/3/2023 100.00
1/31/2023 216430 Carmen Lujan 2/3/2023 130.02
1/31/2023 216431 Charter Communications 1/27/2023 572.13
1/31/2023 216432 CSG Consultants, Inc. 1/1/2023 20,040.00
1/31/2023 216433 Data Ticket Inc. 1/1/2023 200.00
1/31/2023 216434 Department of Transportation 1/1/2023 471.43
1/31/2023 216435 Design Line & Granger 2/8/2023 434.82
1/31/2023 216436 DXP Enterprises Inc. 1/1/2023 3,471.46
1/31/2023 216437 Graniterock 1/4/2023 5,737.30
1/31/2023 216438 Hollister Auto Parts, Inc. 1/3/2023 249.26
1/31/2023 216439 J.C.J. Electric Corp. 1/25/2023 1,084.66
1/31/2023 216440 Jesus Zuniga & Gabriela Cabelo 2/1/2023 700.00
1/31/2023 216441 John Freeman 1/24/2023 345.00
1/31/2023 216442 Judy's Gifts & Awards 2/6/2023 45.47
1/31/2023 216443 KBA Docusys 1/1/2023 861.56
1/31/2023 216444 League of California Cities 1/1/2023 1,567.00
1/31/2023 216445 Mary Barragan 1/25/2023 230.00

Page:  3



City of San Juan Batista
Check/Voucher Register - Check Register  Current Month

From 1/1/2023 Through 1/31/2023

1/31/2023 216446 MNS Engineers, Inc. 1/1/2023 39,811.25
1/31/2023 216447 Monterey Bay Analytical Services 1/1/2023 4,742.00
1/31/2023 216448 Octovio Novua 2/1/2023 700.00
1/31/2023 216449 P G & E 1/29/2023 12,639.78
1/31/2023 216450 Pacific Library Partnership 1/6/2023 900.00
1/31/2023 216451 Petty Cash 1/30/2023 89.70
1/31/2023 216452 Postmaster 2/3/2023 1,000.00
1/31/2023 216453 Rossi Bros Tire & Auto 1/1/2023 210.12
1/31/2023 216454 Rx-Tek 1/24/2023 306.84
1/31/2023 216455 Sound Design A/V Contractors 1/24/2023 1,407.14

Page:  4



City of San Juan Batista
Check/Voucher Register - Check Register  Current Month

From 1/1/2023 Through 1/31/2023

1110 - Operating 
Acct. 1948

Effective Date Check Number Vendor Name
Matching Document 
Date Check Amount

1/31/2023 216456 Staples 1/12/2023 134.38
1/31/2023 216457 State Compensation Insurance Fund 2/21/2023 5,338.75
1/31/2023 216458 The City of Del Rey Oaks 1/20/2023 30.00
1/31/2023 216459 Toro Petroleum Corp. 1/4/2023 268.82
1/31/2023 216460 True Value Hardware 1/1/2023 137.89
1/31/2023 216461 Univar Solutions 3/5/2023 734.03
1/31/2023 216462 USABlueBook 1/1/2023 610.06
1/31/2023 216463 Wellington & Rathie 1/1/2023 7,236.00
1/31/2023 216464 Wendy L. Cumming, CPA 1/31/2023 6,971.25
1/31/2023 ATM Fica 6,095.63

Report Total 627,447.82

Page:  5



City of San Juan Batista

Check/Voucher Register - Check Register  Current Month

1110 - Operating Acct. 1948

From 2/1/2023 Through 2/28/2023

Effective Date Check Number Vendor Name Document Date
Matching 

Check Amount

EFTEFT2/3/2023 CalPers 1/20/2023 2,953.91 

2164652164652/14/2023 Core & Main 1/18/2023 557.73 

2164662164662/14/2023 Iconix Waterworks (US) inc. 1/1/2023 870.71 

2164672164672/14/2023 McKim Corporation 1/18/2023 235,167.85 

2164682164682/14/2023 Allison Newman 1/25/2023 230.00 

2164692164692/24/2023 AFLAC 2/28/2023 934.44 

2164702164702/24/2023 Baker Supplies and Repairs 2/8/2023 17.17 

2164712164712/24/2023 Clark Pest Control 2/14/2023 102.00 

2164722164722/24/2023 CMAP 1/1/2023 1,089.99 

2164732164732/24/2023 CSG Consultants, Inc. 1/13/2023 21,600.00 

2164742164742/24/2023 Cypress Water Services 1/31/2023 11,175.00 

2164752164752/24/2023 Ferguson Enterprises LLC 1/19/2023 9.98 

2164762164762/24/2023 Hamner Jewell Associates 1/31/2023 774.50 

2164772164772/24/2023 Jackie Morris-Lopez 1/20/2023 683.50 

2164782164782/24/2023 Judy's Gifts & Awards 2/15/2023 25.98 

2164792164792/24/2023 Monterey Bay Analytical Services 2/3/2023 3,546.00 

2164802164802/24/2023 New SV Media 2/10/2023 709.60 

2164812164812/24/2023 Nigel Belton Consulting Arborist 2/9/2023 570.00 

2164822164822/24/2023 Ready Refresh 2/12/2023 147.97 

2164832164832/24/2023 Regional Government Services 1/31/2023 1,332.30 

2164842164842/24/2023 Rx-Tek 2/6/2023 333.31 

2164852164852/24/2023 Sprint 2/8/2023 444.64 

2164862164862/24/2023 Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 1/1/2023 12,651.50 

2164872164872/24/2023 US Bank Equipment Finance 3/7/2023 249.61 

2164882164882/24/2023 Valero Wex Bank 2/14/2023 1,107.47 

2164892164892/24/2023 Don Reynolds 2/10/2023 481.80 

2164902164902/24/2023 League of California Cities 2/6/2023 300.00 

2164912164912/28/2023 Department of Transportation 1/1/2023 1,300.34 

2164922164922/28/2023 State Water Resources Control Board 2/13/2023 33,000.00 

Report Total 332,367.30 

Date: 3/8/23 02:17:31 PM Page: 1



City of San Juan Bautista
Revenues ~ Budget Vs. Actual

For the Seven Month Period Ended January 31, 2023

Item # 8.B
City Council Meeting 

March 21, 2023 

REVENUES FY22 FY23 Annual YTD
Fund Actuals Actuals Budget Difference 58% Notes

General Fund 1,395,047 1,498,049         2,737,935  (1,239,886)  55%
Special Revenue Funds:

Capital Projects Fund 81,657      937,556            3,186,996  (2,249,440)  29% B
Community Development 52,423      51,228 404,514     (353,286)     13% A
COPS 93,524      90,234 100,000     (9,766)         90%
Parking & Restroom Fd 31,985      16,114 26,000       (9,886)         62%
Gas Tax Fund 57,904      54,661 98,520       (43,859)       55%
Valle Vista LLD 12,311      15,475 26,529       (11,054)       58%
Rancho Vista CFD 37,642      38,804 66,521       (27,717)       58%
Copperleaf CFD 12,225      13,213 22,650       (9,438)         58%

Internal Service Funds:
Blg Rehab. & Replace 22,167      22,167 38,000       (15,833)       58%
Vehicle Replacement 35,000      35,000 60,000       (25,000)       58%

Enterprise Funds:
Water

Operations 660,761    728,988            1,213,800  (484,812)     60%
Capital -            - 79,350       (79,350)       0% B

Sewer
Operations 711,117    881,298            1,185,000  (303,702)     74%
Capital -            - 484,352     (484,352)     0% B

TOTAL Funds 1,808,715 2,884,738         9,730,167  6,845,429 30%

A ~ These funds are developer derived and are recognized when received. 
B ~ The timing of the projects and the related revenue does not always align with the year-to-date percentages.



City of San Juan Bautista
Expenditures ~ Budget Vs. Actual

For the Seven Month Period Ended January 31, 2023

Item #8.B
City Council Meeting 

March 21, 2023

EXPENDITURES FY22 FY23 Annual YTD  
Fund Actuals Actuals Budget Variance 58% Note

General Fund 984,382       1,066,674    2,425,349  (1,358,675)  44%
Special Revenue Funds:

Capital Projects Fund 81,657         937,556       3,186,996  (2,249,440)  29% A
Community Development 306,030       366,794       671,289     (304,495)     55%
COPS 58,333         58,333         100,000     (41,667)       58%
Parking & Restroom Fd -               -               2,500         (2,500)         0%
Gas Tax Fund 9,637           11,449         19,000       (7,551)         60%
Valle Vista LLD 2,321           17,563         26,529       (8,966)         66%
Rancho Vista CFD 30,533         22,796         66,521       (43,725)       34%
Copperleaf CFD 9,738           12,281         22,650       (10,369)       54%

Development Impact Fee Funds
Public/Civic Facility 1,578           1,575           2,700         (1,125)         58%
Library 9,389           2,590           4,440         (1,850)         58%
Storm Drain 2,003           2,002           3,432         (1,430)         58%
Park In-Lieu 174              175              300            (125) 58%
Public Safety 500              497              852            (355) 58%
Traffic 252              252              432            (180) 58%

Enterprise Funds:
Water:

Operations 463,804       472,720       805,232     332,512      59%
Capital 78,245         13,475         79,350       65,875        17% A

Sewer
Operations 474,695       582,873       923,911     341,038      63%
Capital 585,252       346,411       484,352     137,941      72%

TOTAL Funds 2,163,655    2,849,342    8,825,835  5,976,493   32%

Footnotes: 
A ~ Capital fund transfers/costs are budgeted to be incurred by these funds. Since the costs/transfers occur
        sporadically during the year, they do not always align with the to date percentages, or prior year amounts.

     Additionally, some projects have been moved to the next fiscal year. 

3/15/2023



City Manager Monthly Report

All FEMA all the time!

Working with 3 overlapping Disasters and Subsequent FEMA 
Claims

COVID Submitted before 12.31.2022-

($150,000 - being audited now)

Submitted January Storms this past week ($65,000)

Day-To-Day response to March 9 flooding 

Initial Damage Estimate not ready yet

A lot more private property damage this time



City Manager Monthly Report
March 9 Floods

Most damage ocurred south of Highway 156

Mission Farms RV Park- displaced more than 40 residents

Damage on Lang Street/Alameda & Dias Trailer Park

Rancho Vista Storm Water system being evaluated

Definitely need to consider a Storm Water Master Plan

Most storm water comes from the unincorporated areas 
surrounding the City

Working with Red Cross and coordinating w/volunteers & donations



City Manager Monthly Report
SEWER FORCE MAIN

Adjusted schedules within the 

Water Board Settlement Agreement and 

EPA Administrative Order on Consent  (AOC)

Solicit bids change Valentine’s Day to the end of March

Project end date remains at June 30, 2024 (schedule attached)

USDA being very flexible- agreed to delay several “conditions”

Draft long-term Agreement with Hollister discussed Friday March 3 & 17

Requires USDA approval before bidding can begin

Finance Plan Status

EPA STAG & State Water Board grants, USDA, Line of Credit





City Manager Monthly Report

Import Surface Water

District Considering three alternate routes for the pipeline

Design on Hold until City Agreement is approved

Draft Agreement is with Downy Brand, next priority after Hollister

Intergovernmental Meetings

2 letters shared with the Council

San Benito County Health Care District/Hazel Hawkins Hospital

State efforts and letter sent to Governor



City Manager Monthly Report

New HRB and Planning Commission seated

Grant Application for the 3rd Street Multi Modal Center

Received 17 letters of support

Submitted to Cal Trans week of March 6th

$350,000 Request

RFP for the Housing Element Update due March 31st

Active  Transportation Plan Completed

Retained the services of a Historical Preservation Expert

UGB/SOI Subcommittee Prepared to Re-Start

REAP 2 grant aligned with housing and transportation programs



City Manager Monthly Report

Citygate and Strategic Planning

Conducting Interviews the week of March 13th

Sending out the City-Wide Survey next week

April 14 Special City Council (??) Strategic Planning Workshop

Organizational Study

Fiscal Analysis and Update

Staffing and Organizational Issues to be reviewed

To include administrative support, and Deputy City Clerk duties

Separate Public Safety review to occur as well



City Manager Monthly Report

Pavement Management Plan – will be completed by the end of March





City Manager Monthly Report

Public Meeting Training

Held Tuesday March 7

Joint CC-PC meeting- all but one in attendance

Getting the City into the 21st Century

Transparency- City Clerk is the “Bridge”

City needs “Rules of Conduct”

Defines How Meetings Proceed

Establish equity

Accessibility
























	1 Agenda 03 21 2023
	4.a Terminating COVID-19 Emergency - March 21 2023 CC Mtg
	4.b Confirming Drought & Flooding Emergencies - March 21 2023 CC Mtg
	4.c Waiver of Ord Reading
	4.d Affidavit of Posting PC Agenda 03 21 2023
	AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING

	4.e Meeting Minutes_03 15 2023
	4.f Reso Street Closure
	PASSED AND APPROVED this 21st day of March 2023 by the following vote:

	4.g_1 SR Housing Choice Voucher
	DATE:  MARCH 21, 2023

	4.g_2 Reso.Housing Choice Voucher
	1_6.A SR Reach Codes
	2_6.A SR Attach- Reach Codes
	3_3CE_ReachCodeFlyer_8.5x11_2023Feb_v3
	4_SJB_CouncilStudySession_2023_03_15_rev.1
	City of San Juan Bautista �Reach Code Presentation
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Available Incentives 
	Is Electrification Resilient?
	Thank you!

	1_6.B SR Recreation
	2_6.B SR Recreation Attachments
	6.C_1 SR- Formula Retail
	6.C_2 SR Formula Retail attachment
	1 SR Discussion.Direction.Disposition of Parklet.12202022
	DATE:  MARCH 21, 2023

	2 CC Reso 2023 - XX Parklet Encroachment Permits
	RESOLUTION 2023- XX
	PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of San Juan Bautista on the 21st day of March 2023 by the following vote:

	z 10a SR.Attachments.Dispostion of Parklets
	1 SR Fire Code_Bldg Code Updates-RWR Revison Clean March 21 2023
	2 ORDINANCE NO 2023 -XX 2022 Fire Code Adoption - Final -  March 21 2023 Council Agenda
	3 Exhibit B Public Notice - 2022 CA Fire Code  2022 CA Building Standards Codes Adoption After March 21 2023 CC Mtg (002)
	EXHIBIT B
	Public Notice

	1 Staff Report template San Juan Bautista 2022 Code Adoption FINAL-03-13-23 
	2 2022 CODE ORDINANCE NO  xxxx FINAL  03-13-23
	3 Exhibit B Public Notice - 2022 CA Fire Code  2022 CA Building Standards Codes Adoption After March 21 2023 CC Mtg (002)
	EXHIBIT B
	Public Notice

	CMartorana  Committee App_UGB_SOI
	MEdge Committee App_UGB_SOI
	1 Finance Report for the Seven Month Period Ended Jan 2023
	2 January Warrant List
	Sheet1

	3 February Warrant List
	4 PL vs Budget Summary Jan 2023 Treasurer
	Revenues
	Expenditures

	9.C_ 1 City Manager Monthly Report 03.21.23
	Slide 1: City Manager Monthly Report
	Slide 2: City Manager Monthly Report
	Slide 3: City Manager Monthly Report
	Slide 4
	Slide 5: City Manager Monthly Report
	Slide 6: City Manager Monthly Report
	Slide 7: City Manager Monthly Report
	Slide 8: City Manager Monthly Report
	Slide 9
	Slide 10: City Manager Monthly Report

	9.C_2 CD Dept Rpt Jan.Feb 2023



